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HEARI NG RE: ECHN AND PIVH
MARCH 29, 2016

. Verbati m proceedi ngs of a hearing
before the State of Connecticut, Departnent of Public
Health, Ofice of Health Care Access, in the matter of
Eastern Connecticut Health Network, Inc. (ECHN) and
Prospect Medical Holdings, Inc. (PVH), Purchase ECHN
Assets by PVMH, held at the Manchester Country d ub, 305
Sout h Mai n, Manchester, Connecticut, on March 29, 2016 at
2:00 p.m

HEARI NG OFFI CER KEVI N HANSTED: Good
af ternoon, everyone. This public hearing before the
Ofice of the Attorney General and O fice of Health Care
Access, identified by Docket Nos. 15-32016-486 and 15-
486-01-CON, is being held on March 29, 2016 to consi der
Eastern Connecticut Health Network and Prospect Medi cal
Hol di ngs, Inc. application for the purchase of the assets
of Eastern Connecticut Health Network by Prospect Medica
Hol di ngs.

This hearing is part of the procedure
under what is commonly referred to as the Conversion
Statute, which requires the Comm ssioner of the

Departnent of Public Health and the Attorney Ceneral to
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eval uate any proposal, which would convert a non-profit
Connecticut hospital to a for-profit entity.

For OHCA' s purposes, this public hearing
is being held pursuant to Connecticut Ceneral Statutes,
Section 19a-639a and 19a-486e, and wl| be conducted as a
contested case, in accordance with the provisions of
Chapter 54 of the Connecticut General Statutes.

My nane is Kevin Hansted, and | have been
designated to serve as the Hearing Oficer for the Ofice
of Health Care Access in this matter

The staff nmenbers assigned to this case
are Kinberly Martone, Director of Qperations, Steven
Lazarus and Carnen Cotto. The hearing is being recorded
by Post Reporting Services.

OHCA w Il make its determnation on this
application pursuant to Sections 19a-486d and 19a- 639 of
t he Connecticut Ceneral Statutes.

Eastern Connecticut Health Network and
Prospect Medical Hol dings, Inc. have been designated as
parties in this proceeding.

MR. PERRY ZI NN ROMHORN: Good afternoon
M/ nane is Perry Zinn Rowmhorn. |’mthe Deputy Attorney
General for the State of Connecticut. |’ve been

designated the Hearing Oficer in this matter by Attorney
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General George Jepsen.

| want to thank the Applicants, who are
here, the witnesses, any public officials we may hear
from and a special thank you to the nenbers of the
public, who are here today.

We recognize that this transaction is
inmportant to your community, and it’'s inportant to all of
the 19 communities that ECHN serves. That’'s why we’'re
here, and your presence here underscores the inportance
of this transaction in our review

W' re conducting this hearing jointly with
OHCA, but the Attorney General has a different role in
review ng the transaction, a different focus and
different criteria, and | want to say a few words about
that before we get into the hearing.

The Attorney General’s role is defined and
l[imted by the Conversion Act, the statute that Attorney
Hansted referred to, Section 19a-486.

That Conversion Act reflects the Attorney
Ceneral’s traditional role in protecting the public
interest and charitabl e assets and insuring that nonies
and properties commtted to a charitable purpose are
saf eguarded and used appropriately.

Non-profit hospitals and hospital systens,
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like ECHN, hold their assets for essentially a charitable
pur pose, providing health care, and not unlike for-profit
systens generating profits for sharehol ders or owners.

The adm nistrators of a non-profit
hospital are stewards of its charitable assets with a
responsibility to take good care of those assets.

The | aw does not prohibit hospitals, non-
profit hospitals, fromconverting to for-profit status.
When one seeks to do so, as here, the Attorney General’s
job is to ensure that the non-profit hospital is neeting
its obligations of care for charitable assets.

We make sure three things, that the
process leading to the sale was responsi ble, we | ook at
where hospital -- were the hospital admnistrators
careful in deciding to sell and choosing a buyer and
negotiating the transaction?

We | ook at the ternms of the sale. Are
they fair? WII the hospital systemget fair market
value for its assets? And we | ook at the proceeds of the
sale. WII they continue to be used for charitable
heal t h-rel at ed purposes?

Those proceeds remain charitable assets,
and we need to ensure that the assets of the sale are

protected frombeing used for the for-profit making
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pur poses of the new hospital system

Because the Attorney Ceneral nust renain
focused t hroughout on the charitable assets, his review
and our decision for the nost part does not focus on the
running of the for-profit hospital systemafter the
transacti on.

| ssues relating to the operation of the
new hospital entity, as it relates to access to health
care services, are within OHCA' s purvi ew.

Today’s hearing is a very inportant part,
but just one part of a review that has been ongoing for
nonths. W' Il take testinony and evi dence, and we’l|
hear public input today. W’I|l ask sonme questions.

Don’t assune if we don’t ask a question on
atopic that that topic is not inportant to us. Before
t oday, we have received and revi ewed thousands of pages
of docunents, and we’ ve asked questions and received
answers in witten form

Al of those nmaterials, by the way, are
avai l abl e for your review on the Attorney Ceneral’s
website, ww. ct.gov/ ag.

The public’s input is inportant to our
review. Al the information we receive today and in the

hearing we’ Il hold on this transaction tonorrow in
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Vernon, including all the public coments, wll becone
part of the official record of our review

W' || do our best to accommodate
everybody, who wants to speak. W'’II|l also take comments
in witing, and those comments will also be included in
the official record.

We have sheets at the door that you
probably saw when you canme in to sign up if you want to
speak. W urge you to do that, and we’'re anxi ous to hear
your conmentary.

You can al so take sheets. W have
instruction sheets at the table for your own review or to
give to friends or acquai ntances, who may w sh to be
heard on this transaction, but couldn’t be here today.

We are on track to review, to conplete
this review and i ssue our decision as early as June 10th
of this year. | want to say a word about what that
deci sion mght entail.

Under our statute, the Attorney Cenera
ei ther nmust approve the transaction as it is, deny it, or
approve it wth conditions, and those conditions for our
pur poses would relate to the purpose of the Conversion
Act. That is, they would relate to the Attorney

CGeneral’s focus on protection of charitable assets.
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This is a joint hearing. Kevin and | are
going to work together to nove this along to cover as
much business as we can. You can assune that if either
of us makes a ruling, that unless we state otherw se,
that ruling will apply for both offices, and you can
assune that, if either of us asks a question, because we
have a joint record, that the question and answer will be
applicable in both of our reviews and records.

"1l talk alittle bit about how we see
this proceeding going forward today. W’re going to hear
first the Applicant’s Direct testinony. Next, OHCA wi ||
ask questions. To the extent that we have additi onal
guestions after OHCA's, we’' Il ask questions, then we'll
have opportunity for public coment, and then opportunity
for closing remarks.

Before I turn it back over to Kevin, who
has got sone additional inportant business to discuss, |
want to introduce the Attorney CGeneral’s staff, who is
here with ne today.

| medi ately to ny left is Assistant
Attorney General Henry Salton, who is providing | ega
advice to the Attorney CGeneral and to OHCA

Next to himis Assistant Attorney CGenera

Gary Hawes, who is coordinating this review for our
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office. Soon to be with us is paral egal speciali st
Cheryl Turner, who has returned to our office to get our
nane pl ates, because we see that OHCA has theirs, and
we’ re anonynous to this point at |east, so thank you for
your attention. 1'Il turn it back over to Kevin.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Thank you,

Perry. At this tinme, 1'Il ask staff to read into the
record all those docunents already appearing in the Table
of the Record, and those docunents have been identified
in the Table of Record for reference purposes. M.

Lazar us?

MR. STEVEN LAZARUS: Good afternoon.
Steven Lazarus. For today’s record, | would like to
enter into the record Exhibits A through CC

| would Iike to note that, in itemBB, the
presentation being provided today by Eastern Connecti cut
Heal th Network is included in those docunents.

Al so, OHCA intends to add to the record
Exhibit DD, which will be the PowerPoint presentation
submtted by Prospect Medical Hol ding.

And, al so, a new docunent that we received
today that we’'re in the process of reviewing, the Quality
Assurance Commtnent, is being added as Exhibit EE

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Thank you, M.
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Lazarus. Counsel, are there any objections to any of the
exhi bits?

M5. REBECCA MATTHEWS: No objection. This
i s Rebecca Matthews from Wggin and Dana here on behal f
of ECHN. There are no objections to the record. W just
had a few clarifications that we wanted to nake if that’s
okay.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED:  Sure.
Absol utely.

M5. MATTHEWS: The first is with respect
to Exhibit E

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: | f you just
bring it closer to you, it mght help.

M5. MATTHEWS: Can you hear ne now? |Is
that better? So the first is with respect to Exhibit E
There’s a reference to a two-page request for an
extension to file the original application. | think
there were two separate letters, both of which were two
pages, one fromeach of the Applicants, co-Applicants, so
|"mnot sure if this is referring to the letter from PWVH
or ECHN, but we just wanted to nmake sure that both
letters were included in the record since that was a
joint request, if possible.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Thank you. Yes.
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M5. MATTHEWS: The second is wth respect
to Exhibit H There’'s a reference to a one-page public
comment letter. It doesn’'t say in the Table of Record
who it’s fromor the date.

| think, fromlooking at the docket, it is
referring to an e-mail froma M. Tonerow cz(phoneti c)
fromlast Cctober. Again, no objection at all to it
being in the record.

We just wanted to nmake sure or to clarify
on the record that there are other letters of support
t hat have been filed. Sonme of themwere filed with our
initial application. | think that’s DD, was the filing,
and then additional letters have been filed wth our nost
recent subm ssion or the subm ssion on Monday, the 28th,
so | just wanted to note that for the record.

A very small point on Exhibit K which it
says it’s dated Novenber 24th, and I think it’'s dated the
23rd, and you just may hear us reference that filing. |
just want to nmake sure there’ s no confusion.

Just a couple nore. One is P, where the
agenci es have taken adm nistrative notice of the Geater
WAt erbury Heal th Network application, and, again, no
objection at all.

As you nentioned, these applications are
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very lengthy. They' re thousands of pages, so we don’t
actual ly have that application with us today, and we may
not know everything in it, and we would just ask, if it’s
possible, if there’ s anything specific that m ght be used
fromthat application in this decision that we m ght not
ot herwi se know about, if you could, please, if we could
respectfully request to have sone specific notice and an
opportunity to respond, because we do not have it with us
t oday.

And | think that is all. 1 know you ve
added the quality commtnent letter, which we submtted
today. Thank you very much.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Thank you. Ckay
and, at this point, would all the individuals, who are
going to testify, would you please stand, raise your
ri ght hand and be sworn in by the court reporter?

(Wher eupon, the parties were duly sworn
in.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Thank you,
everyone. Just a couple nore points. First of all,
before each of you speaks today, if you ve submtted pre-
filed testinony, please adopt that testinony for ne on
the record today before you speak. Thank you.

And if everyone would like to go down the

POST REPORTI NG SERVI CE
HAMDEN, CT (800) 262-4102



© 00 N o o -~ w N Pk

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N PP O O 00 N O O B W N +—» O

13
HEARI NG RE: ECHN AND PIVH
MARCH 29, 2016

line and just introduce yourselves, that would be
hel pful. Start down here.

VMS. MELI NDA AGSTEN. |’ m Mel i nda Agsten of
Wggi n and Dana, counsel to ECHN

M5. MATTHEWS: Rebecca Matthews, Wggin
and Dana, counsel to ECHN

MR PETER KARL: Peter Karl, CEO of ECHN.

M5. JOY DORIN.  Joy Dorin, nenber of the
Board of Trustees.

DR DENNIS O NEILL: Dennis O Neill, Chair
of the Board of ECHN.

DR MTCHELL LEW Dr. Mtchell Lew,
President, Prospect Medical Hol di ngs.

MR VON CROCKETT: Von Crockett, Senior
Vi ce President of Corporate Devel opnent for Prospect
Medi cal .

MR JONATHAN SPEES: |’ m Jonat han Spees.
"’ m Senior Vice President with Prospect Mdical Hol di ngs.

MR STEVEN ALEMAN: |’ m Steve Al enan,
Chief Financial Oficer, Prospect Mdical Holdings.

MR TOM REARDON:  And |’ m Tom Rear don,
Presi dent of Prospect East.

M5. M CHELE VOLPE: And I'’m M chel e Vol pe,

Legal Counsel for Prospect Medical Hol dings.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Ckay. Thank
you, all, and welcone. And, at this point, Attorney
Mat t hews, you may proceed with your presentation.

M5. MATTHEWS: Thank you, all, very nuch
for this opportunity. 1'd like to introduce first Dr.
Dennis O Neill, who is going to speak on behal f of ECHN.

DR O NEI LL: Good afternoon.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Good aft er noon.

DR O NElLL: M. Hansted, M. Zinn
Rowt horn, menbers of the office of the Attorney Ceneral,
and nmenbers of the office of Health Care Access, ny nane
is Dennis G ONeill. 1'mthe Chair of the Board of
Trustees of Eastern Connecticut Heal th NetworKk.

" mal so a physician in private practice
wor king in the Manchester and Vernon communities for the
past 33 years.

Thank you for providing us with the
opportunity to submt testinony in support of ECHN s
proposal to transfer its assets to Prospect Medi cal
Hol di ngs.

First, I would like to adopt ny pre-filed
testinony, then I'd like to explain that, after ny
i ntroductory coments, Peter J. Karl, ECHN s President

and CEO sitting to ny left, is going to nake a bri ef
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presentation on our financial situation.

Joy Dorin to ny inrediate |eft, one of our
Trustees and Chair of the Board' s Transaction Comm ttee,
will then present information on the transaction, itself,
and ECHN s quality program after which representatives
of Prospect Medical Holdings will offer information on
t hei r organi zati on.

Manchester Menorial Hospital and Rockville
General Hospital, the flagship hospitals of ECHN, were
built about 95 years ago by nenbers of their respective
communities in response to the influenza pandem c of 1918
and, also, as nenorials to those comunity nmenbers, who
died in Wrld War 1.

For many decades, these two hospitals
functi oned as separate comunity hospitals, and then
about 20 years ago, they joined together to form ECHN

They were both in good financial shape at
the tinme, but pursued a nerger, in order to provide nore
efficient and better integrated hospital care for their
citizens.

Over the last two decades, ECHN has grown
beyond the two hospitals into a health care network with
13 whol | y-owned subsidiaries, 12 joint venture conpanies,

and dozens of facilities serving the needs of our
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communi ties.

ECHN now enpl oys 3,000 people in eastern
Connecticut, and the hospitals in Manchester and Vernon
are the | argest enployers in their conmunities.

In just this last year, 2015,
approxi mately 115,000 people were treated in our
hospitals, 61,000 fol ks were exam ned in our energency
departnents, 5,000 patients were cared for by our
visiting nurses, and we delivered about 1,400 babi es.

Needl ess to say, the citizens of eastern
Connecticut need and use our facilities, but the Anerican
people, in general, and the nenbers of our conmunities,
nmore specifically, have told us that they want and need
care that is even nore integrated than the care they
recei ve today, care that is higher in quality and | ower
in cost.

In an attenpt to respond to these needs
and in anticipation of worsening financial conditions,
the trustees of ECHN about four and a half years ago
formed a work group to eval uate whet her or not ECHN
shoul d pursue a partnership with another organizati on.

At that time, we thought we had about five
years before our circunstances becane dire, due to

changes in the health care | andscape that we thought were
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going to have a negative effect on our organi zation.

The first year was spent deciding that we
shoul d partner, as opposed to going it alone. 1In the
second year, we selected as our best option an asset
pur chase agreenent offered by Vanguard Heal th System and
New Haven Heal th System

In the mddle of the second year, Vanguard
was acquired by Tenet, and we spent the renai nder of that
year getting to know t hem

During year nunber three, we negotiated a
deal wth Tenet that woul d have preserved our hospitals,
the jobs of our enpl oyees, and the pensions of our
retirees, and provided capital for future growh, but, at
the end of 2014, Tenet abruptly left the state, citing
what it perceived as overly restrictive conditions placed
on its acquisitions by state regul atory agenci es.

That was a great di sappointnent to us,
because it essentially scuttled three years of work, but,
nmore inportantly, we were three years closer to 2016 with
still no deal in hand.

But then, in 2015, our fourth year, we
were fortunate enough to find Prospect Medical Hol dings
and spent nost of that year negotiating a deal with them

and resubmtting our application for regulatory revi ew
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Prospect is a health care conpany based in
California that, through the business acunen of its
founders, the perspicacity of its senior managenent team
and the perseverance of its staff, has in the last two
decades becone an industry leader in what is referred to
as popul ation heal t h.

That is managi ng all aspects of a health
system inpatient care, outpatient care, physician office
care, hone health care for a |arge group of people, in
this case the people of eastern Connecticut, wth higher
quality and | ower cost.

Li ke all health care conpani es, though
Prospect is not a perfect hospital conpany. Last year,
during inspections at two of its California hospitals,
the Centers for Medicare and Medi caid Services, CVM5, nade
determnations that required correction.

You Il hear nore about this in a couple of
m nutes fromJoy Dorin, one of our Trustees, and the
fol ks from Prospect.

But it’s inmportant to note at this point
that our Trustees and Corporators chose overwhel mngly,
the Trustees voted unani nously and the Corporators voted
with 98 percent approval rate, to transfer our assets to

Prospect for at |east three inportant reasons.
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First, Prospect is not Tenet. They're
smaller in size, they're Il ess threatening as a newconer
within the state of Connecticut, and because they’ re not
affiliated with Yale or Hartford HealthCare, they woul d
actually increase, rather than reduce, conpetition within
our state.

Secondly, the deal we negotiated with
Prospect is essentially the sane deal we had negoti at ed
with Tenet, with preservation of our hospitals, our
enpl oyees, our retirees and capital for our future.

And, thirdly, Prospect is a recognized
expert in what they refer to as coordi nated regional
care, taking to a new | evel what began with the creation
of our two hospitals nmany years ago and continued with
the formation of ECHN

Now, for nore detailed information on
ECHN s financial condition, I1'd like to pass the
m crophone to Peter J. Karl, ECHN s President and CEQO

MR. KARL: Thank you, Dr. ONeill. M
nanme is Peter Karl. [|I’mthe CEO of ECHN, and | adopt ny
pre-filed testinony.

M/ mandate today is to try to explain how
and why we cane here today. It really all started back

in 2010, as we reflect back and think about the
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Affordabl e Care Act, the thought of decreasing
governnent al paynents, focusing on value, |ower cost, but
hi gh-qual ity care.

|’d like to wal k you through the story of
how we got here. Wat | would ask is that you take
slides seven, eight and nine and put them side-by-side in
front of you. That may nake it easier for nme to explain
to all of you. Thank you.

So | started as CEO in Decenber of 2004
and began the | eadership of ECHN then. Back in the
earlier days, about 11 years ago, you can see how the
organi zati on was perform ng.

It began to find its way in the 2008/ 2009
tinme franme. At that sanme tinme, if you renenber, there
was a significant issue with pensions, as it relates to
Wor | dCom and Enron, and organi zations not being able to
fund their pensions, therefore, the PBGC had to pick up
t hei r pensi ons.

What happened then was the Pension
Protection Act went into play, and that Pension
Protection Act took the actuarial projections froma 21-
year | ook forward down to a seven-year | ook forward.

Because of that, the pension liabilities

for all organizations grew significantly. To make
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matters worse, the market crashed. W all renenber 2008
and 2009.

Even t hough ECHN froze their pension, we
now had a pension liability, a pension paynent annually
that went fromzero dollars, because the pension used to
fund itself through the market performance, to a total of
$12 mllion per year we had to pay into our pension.

Qur pension, because of the market crash
grew significantly. [If you follow our debt throughout
t he years, you can see that we controlled our debt.

There was no way for us to take on nuch nore debt, except
back in 2009, where we had to invest about $9 million
into a new critical care unit at Manchester Menoria
Hospital, because of the need of our patients.

On top of all of that, as we’ re going
through this difficulty right now, about $12 mllion went
to the pension, about $12 mllion went to our debt, so
the first $24 mllion went out the door to pay
liabilities. Wat that left was very little to invest
back into the organization

I f you | ook at the next page, on page
eight, you Il see that, at the exact sane tinme, later on
in the years, in 14, ' 15 and ' 16, the federal governnent

and the state governnent began inposing certain
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reductions in reinbursenent and inposing a hospital tax.

The hospital tax began earlier, but, in
2014, it was about $4 mllion, and, if you all renenber,
t he federal governnment could not agree on a budget, so
there was a two percent cut across the board, called
sequestration. That affected us to the tune of $2.2
mllion per year

In fiscal year 16, this year, the
Connecticut hospital tax inposed on our organization is
nearly $10 mllion.

Most recently, and you may want to add
this to the 9.942, the additional $4.6 mllion that was
prom sed to our organization by the state governnment was
hel d back, due to the state’s budget woes, so that $9.9
mllion junped an additional $4.6 mllion.

| would ask you now to reflect back to
page seven, please. You |ook at page seven, you can see
that the organi zation can no | onger performat a positive
cash flow or at a profit.

It has to take all of these reductions.
You add up about $25.1 million in reductions in
rei nmbursenent or tax, and you add that to the current
organi zati on, so then you nust wonder why how did you get

at least the $2.2 mllion or a loss of only $.3 mllion?
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Well there are only two ways to get to
that. One way is to reduce |abor. Labor is 60 percent
of our operating costs. W reduced approxi mately 200
FTEs over the past two years, because of these
reducti ons.

And if you go to page nine, there's the
other side of the ledger. You |ook at the organization,
and how do you reinvest in the organization if you don’t
have any noney? Well you don’t. You can’t fund your
depreci ati on, so what happens then?

The age of your plan continues to age.
Facilities begin to breakdown, equipnent begins to
breakdown, and, as Dr. O Neill nentioned, we’'re talking
about 100-year-ol d buil di ngs.

Qur average age of our plant, as it’s
measured nationally, is 21 years old. The nationa
average for the age of a plant is 10 years old. W are

tw ce that age

If you flip to the next page, please, and

"1l wap this up, we are |ooking at not only these
forces, but the continued negative forces into the
future; continued erosion fromthe federal governnent,
declining levels in paynent fromthe state governnent,

paynment reforns that include financial risk, these
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continued pension obligations that just won’t go away,
the state of Connecticut is struggling with that right
now t hensel ves, all of you, and the continued rising
costs. W have to pay our enployees. W have to pay for
supplies and increases. Cost of living continues to go
up.

| can’t express enough the dire situation
we are in at this point in time. Next page, please.

Let nme briefly explain the proposed
transaction. What this transaction will do for us it
wi Il satisfy our debt and our pension liabilities.

ECHN wi || have a fresh start. There wll
be no debt. The pension liabilities will be satisfied by
Prospect Medical. Not only that, $75 million in capita
will be reinvested in the health network, and what | nean
by the health network is what Dr. O Neill nentioned.

Not only the two hospitals, or long-term
care facility, or VNHSC, but into the comrunities,
whether it’s additional services, additional physicians,
specialists that we currently don’t have.

W will continue to have the ECH brand and
m ssion. There will be an Advisory Board, and we w ||
enpl oy all physicians, all enploynent, all enployees.

Excuse ne.
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And ny last slide. One of the reasons why
we chose Prospect, and as Dr. O Neill nentioned, is
because they know how to survive and thrive in risk-based
mar kets. They’'ve done it in California. You're going to
hear a | ot nore about that as we go forward, but another
reason why we wanted to step into the for-profit arena is
this.

For-profits can go to the equity markets
to raise capital. Not-for-profits can't. Many of the
not-for-profits in Connecticut that are interested or
were interested in us are cash poor. They cannot cone
forward. Adding our woes onto their woes is just a
recipe in failure.

Thank you. [I’'Il now pass this over to Joy
Dorin, Vice Chair of the Board of Trustees.

M5. DORIN. Can you hear ne? kay.
Louder? Can you hear nme now?

MR ZINN ROMHORN: I n the back, can you
hear the speakers? Thank you.

M5. DORIN. Geat. Thank you and good
afternoon. M/ nane is Joy Dorin, and | adopt ny pre-
filed testinony.

|"ve been a nenber of the ECHN Board of

Trustees since 2004 and currently serve as the Vice Chair
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and Chair of the Transaction Conmttee.

In ny professional life, 1've held
positions in health care organizations, including G gna
Health Plan, Athena Health Care and Qualidigm the
state’s quality inprovenent organi zation that works with
the Centers for Medi care and Medi cai d.

Thr oughout ny career, |’ ve been invol ved
in and responsible for quality, patient satisfaction and
conpliance matters across the health care conti nuum

In addition to ny professional background,
|’ma longtine resident of Manchester, nearly 40 years.
Wiile I was born and raised in New Jersey, | consider
Manchest er ny hone.

This is where ny friends live, ny son and
his young famly live, and ny husband owns a snall
busi ness on Main Street.

| mentioned ny Manchester roots, because
insuring ECHN s future is inportant to me, and it’s
inportant to every other individual and famly, who |ives
east of the river.

I n eval uati ng our options, we established
four goals, that high-quality health care services are
accessi ble, affordable and delivered safely to the people

in this part of Connecticut, that clinical services are
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expanded, that enpl oyees continue to have jobs, and
facilities and technol ogy are upgraded.

Dr. ONeill talked about the inportance of
preserving ECHN to serve the public need, and M. Karl
covered the financial challenges and how t he Prospect
transaction will allow ECHN to neet these chall enges.

|"d like to spend the next few m nutes
focusing on the inportance of quality and safety. W are
proud of the efforts our staff and physicians have taken.

O note, ECHN was one of the first
networks in Connecticut to becone a high-reliability
or gani zati on.

Thi s deci sion and journey has changed our
culture to the benefit of our patients. It has resulted
in process inprovenents and a reduction in serious safety
events.

Qur focus on quality has resulted in the
Joi nt Conm ssi on recogni zing our two hospitals as top
per formers.

At Manchester Menorial Hospital, we were
recogni zed for heart failure, pneunonia, surgical care,

i mmuni zation and perinatal care, and, at Rockville
Hospital, for pneunonia, surgical care and i muni zati on.

Because of these acconplishnents, it was
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i mportant that our potential acquirer share our
commtnment to quality and safety.

As part of our initial due diligence, ECHN
requested quality information fromall potentia
acquirers and did a side-by-side conparison of the CV5
quality indicators.

We al so visited hospitals owed by the
potential acquirers and nmet with staff nenbers invol ved
in quality and performance i nprovenent.

More specifically, visits were nmade to
Prospect hospitals in California and in Rhode Island to
obtain additional firsthand information.

When ECHN | earned of the inmmedi ate
j eopardy determ nations identified at the Los Angel es
Community Hospital and the Southern California hospitals,
the Board determ ned that it needed nore information and
appointed a quality evaluation teamto research and
report back to the Transaction Commttee and the full
Boar d.

| was appointed to this team along with
Dr. Mchelle Conlin, the Chair of the Performance
Assessnent and | nprovenent Comm ttee and a practicing
physi ci an, and three nenbers of ECHN s Quality

Departnent, the Vice President of Quality and Safety and
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two Quality Inprovenent Managers.

The team was charged wi th determ ning
whet her Prospect’s experiences in California could
threaten or dimnish ECHN s current quality and safety
standards and its ongoi ng performance i nprovenent
initiatives.

To conplete our charge, the teamfirst
focused on the i mMmedi ate jeopardy issues and defi ciencies
and Prospect’s plans for correction.

The team found the renedi ation plans to be
conprehensi ve and appropriate, and, in several mnutes, a
representative fromProspect will provide nore
information, the root causes and the corrective action
pl ans.

The eval uation team however, didn't stop
here. W decided to go broader and deeper, and, over the
| ast four and a half weeks, requested, received and
revi ewed extensive anmounts of information from Prospect
about its hospitals in California, Texas and Rhode
| sl and.

This information included past regul atory
surveys, renedi ation plans and year-over-year quality
metrics. The quality reviewers focused, in particular

on the nost recent surveys, as they would be nost |ikely
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to reveal any issues or patterns of concern with how
Prospect currently conducts its hospital business.

The team al so | ooked retrospectively at
qual ity assessnent and performance i nprovenent indicators
and prospectively at the 2016 Quality Assessnent and
Per f or mance | nprovenent Pl ans.

Additionally, we reviewed enpl oyee
turnover statistics and, in a parallel activity,
col l ected and di scussed updated financial information.

G ven that regulatory standards are
applied differently anong regi ons, the evaluation team
pai d special attention to Prospect’s Charter CARE
hospitals i n Rhode Isl and.

The eval uation teamsent its Quality
Department team nenbers to those hospitals for a day-Iong
visit to observe and evaluate all aspects of the quality
and safety prograns in person.

The ECHN reviewers found not only that the
prograns were of high quality, but they had been
enhanced, rather than scal ed back, after Prospect’s
acqui sition.

Throughout this review, Prospect nade its
information and personnel fully available to assist us.

As we di scussed their plans and approach to quality,
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Prospect was asked specifically whether or not they
expected to receive any additional survey deficiencies.

Prospect responded that, while imediate
j eopardy findings were not expected, because of the new
quality controls, structure and processes it had
inplemented, it was |likely that additional deficiencies
woul d be noted in resurveys. This, in fact, did happen.

In the March 23rd CMS response to the Los
Angel es Conmmunity Hospital resurvey, the hospital was
cited for deficiencies in infection control and nursing
servi ces.

Prospect conmunicated this to us on the
sanme day they were notified, and we have since had
several follow up conmunications with them about these
results.

Quality inprovenent, by definition, is a
continuous process. W all know hospitals are conpl ex
regul ated organi zations wth many noving parts, and
sonmetines, despite the best intentions and focus on care,
i ssues do ari se.

After the review just outlined, the
eval uati on team concl uded the i medi ate jeopardy issues
were isolated, that Prospect took the California survey

results seriously and responded swiftly with corrective
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action pl ans.

The team al so col | aborated with the
Transaction Commttee and ECHN Council to eval uate
Prospect’s conti nued appropri ateness as a transaction
partner. The Transaction Comm ttee recomended that ECHN
seek a quality commtnent letter to ensure ECHN s pati ent
quality, patient experience and safety prograns retain
their forward nomentum for a period of tinme post-closing.

Prospect has agreed to execute such a
letter, which also contains a provision for ECHN to
benefit fromthe quality inprovenent prograns observed at
t he Charter CARE hospitals.

Based on the findings presented by the
eval uation team and the protections gai ned under the
quality commtnment letter, the Transaction Committee
recomended and the Board confirmed ECHN s commtnent to
proceed with the transaction.

Prospect’ s busi ness nodel depends on
significant |ocal oversight for operations, including
quality and safety. This neans the current ECHN quality
teamw |l continue its good work in eastern Connecti cut.

In summary, in addition, it is anticipated
that Prospect’s eastern region, which includes Prospect’s

hospitals in Connecticut and Rhode Island, wll
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col | aborate on quality and safety neasures that are
expected to be inplenmented in Prospect’s hospitals across
t he country.

ECHN | ooks forward to this coll aboration.
Thank you very much

DR. O NEILL: Thank you, Joy. That
concludes ECHN s comments. Next, 1'd like to pass the
m crophone to Mtchell Lew, who is the President and
Chi ef Executive Oficer of Prospect Medical Hol dings.

M5. MATTHEWS: Before Mtchell talks, if
we can just nmake one clarification point? | know Joy
mentioned that the quality commtnent |letter PVH had
agreed to signit. That is the letter that we have. It
has now been executed and signed, and it’s been
subm tted.

MR ZINN ROMHORN: Can | ask by way of
one clarification? That letter, does it have a duration?
Do the coomtnents in that |letter have a duration?

M5. DORIN:  Two years.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Can you j ust
speak into the m crophone? Thank you.

M5. DORIN:  Two years.

MR ZINN ROMHORN: | don’t want to get

ahead of anybody’s presentation, and feel free to tell ne
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that |’ mabout to hear the answer to this in one of the
presentations we're going to hear, but, froma structural
perspective, to the extent there were personnel, who were
identifiable for quality control in Prospect in those
California hospitals that had the i medi ate jeopardi es,
what role will those individuals have with respect to
quality control in the ECHN system goi ng forward?

MR. CROCKETT: This is Von Crockett.

Actual Iy, none of those individuals will have a role,

and, during ny testinony, |'lIl go through the structure
that we will have for the eastern region new individuals.
MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: Ckay. W'l | ook

forward to hearing that. Thank you.

DR. LEW Cood afternoon. M nane is Dr.
Mtchell Lew. |I’m President of Prospect Medi cal
Hol di ngs, PMH | adopt ny pre-filed testinony.

| appreciate the opportunity to speak
today in support of the conversion application regarding
t he proposed acquisition of assets of Eastern Connecti cut
Heal th Network, including Manchester Menorial Hospita
and Rockville CGeneral Hospital by PMH

|"d like to begin by reintroducing the PWVH
representatives here with nme, so that they can adopt

their pre-filed testinony.
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First is John Spees. John is Vice
Presi dent of Mergers and Acquisitions at PVH  John w |
di scuss the transaction, as well as certain aspects of
PMH s operations. John?

MR SPEES: |’ m Jonat han Spees, and |
adopt ny pre-filed testinony.

DR LEW Next, | would like to introduce
Steve Aleman, who is the Chief Financial Oficer of PV
Steve will be available to answer any questions rel ated
to the financial operations of PM.

MR ALEMAN. |'m Steve Al eman, and | adopt
ny pre-filed testinony. Thank you.

DR. LEW Von Crockett, Von is the Senior
Vice President of Corporate Devel opnent at PMH  Von wil |
di scuss the health care quality nmatters at the various
PMH hospital s and be avail able to answer questions
related to our quality prograns. \Von?

MR CROCKETT: Von Crockett, and | adopt
ny pre-filed testinony.

DR LEW In addition, we have Tom
Reardon. Tomis President of Prospect East and has been
working closely with ECHN fromthe start of the process,
and Tomw || speak later in our presentation.

So let’s go to the first slide. ECHN and
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Prospect, commtted to this community. Wo is Prospect?
W are a health care services conpany, and we operate

| ocal community hospitals, |ocal governance, |oca
physi ci an | eader shi p.

We invest in our hospitals and in our
communities. For exanple, in Rhode Island, we're just
finishing up a beautification project, rebuilding the
entrance of the hospital. W’ve enhanced the @ |ab, and
we’'re | ooking to hopefully build a heart |ab, also.

W’ ve opened two hospitals in California
recently in areas that needed them specifically, in
Bel I fl ower, a psychiatric hospital, and in Orange County
a new nedi cal surgical hospital.

And, so, the stability that we do bring to
communi ties are continued enploynent and creation of new
jobs. W also believe in expansion of prograns and
services to inprove access and quality.

For exanple, in Texas, we built a brand
new energency roomat the Nix Health System W’ ve
opened several urgent cares in Rhode Island and the
surroundi ng communities, and, in California, we’ ve opened
a lot of urgent cares and, also, wellness clinics, again,
to pronote access and for conveni ence for the popul ation.

Alittle bit about our hospitals. W have
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14 community hospitals. Seven are in California, four in
Texas, which we’ve owned for about four years, and two in
Rhode Isl and, which we’ve owned for roughly two years,
and then recently opened or acquired a hospital in New
Jersey.

W serve many different communities. In
fact, many of the hospitals that we operate are in
under served communities, and we take all types of health
insurance. To us, a patient is a patient.

W provide nedical, surgical, in sone
cases tertiary, psychiatric and | ong-termcare services.
W have a | ot of experience in proving multiple services
across our hospitals.

We have over 40 outpatient clinics and
centers in our nodel. Not all of the care is delivered
in the hospital. A lot of the care is delivered on an
outpatient setting, because we want to be very cost
effective.

W don’t just own and operate hospitals.
We al so have a | ot of experience at operating and
managi ng nedi cal groups. W’ ve been doing this for nmany
years, and you can think of our nodel as a nulti-
specialty health care provider wthout walls.

They are structured in what we call
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| ndependent Practice Associations, called | PAs, where
t hese are networks of doctors that are working to
coordi nate care together

And the beauty of this nodel is that
physi ci ans can remain i ndependent, if that’s what their
W shes are, or they can be enployed. Qur |PA nodel can
utilize both, depending on what the doctor wants.

W’ ve been doing this in Southern
California for over 20 years. W have quite a presence
in Southern California. W’ ve also been grow ng our
physi ci an networks in Texas.

We have over 500 doctors in our network.
In Providence, Rhode Island, we have over 350 physi ci ans,
and, in New Jersey already, we have 125 physi ci ans.

As | stated earlier, we contract with al
maj or health plans. W have nearly 9,000 physicians in
all of our networks taking care of nearly 300, 000
patients, and we provide coordination of care across the
entire continuum

And, so, what that neans is whether a
patient is at honme, in a hospital, a skilled nursing
facility, clinic, or physician office, we follow their
care throughout.

Qur goal is to have better outcones and
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hi gh patient satisfaction, so that patients can tel
their famly and friends cone get your care here at ECHN.

As a result of our conpany’s experience of
owni ng and operating hospitals and managi ng physi ci an
groups, we have devel oped what we think is a very unique
nodel of care, a very unique delivery nodel, which we
cal |l Coordi nated Regi onal Care, or CRC

Coordi nated Regional Care is where we
i ntegrate hospitals and physicians and other providers in
the community. For exanple, the |ocal honme health
conpany, the local palliative conpany, the |ocal DM,

Dur abl e Medi cal Equi pnent conpany, and they work very
closely, we work very closely wth the health plans, the
payers and the governnent, because we want to achieve

i nproved patient care and high patient satisfaction.

And this nodel we’ve inplenented al ready
successfully in seven regions in California, Texas and
Rhode Island and currently in devel opnment in New Jersey,
al ready here in Connecticut, and soon to be in
Pennsyl vani a.

So you’ve heard this buzz word, popul ation
heal th managenent. Let nme just put this in sinple terns
for those, who are not in health care.

We care about the health of everybody in
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the community. That matters to us, and we have the
experience to ensure that everybody will get good health
care.

We have a uni que nodel, which provides
hi gher val ue, and, so, you can achi eve better care, and
it doesn’t have to necessarily cost nore.

So how do we do this? Wat is our secret
to inproving care and outcones? Well it really revol ves
around patient-centered, yet physician-Iled approach.

We have multi-disciplinary care teans that
take care of our sickest patients, they' re avail able
24/ 7, teanms of providers, such as nurse practitioners,
phar maci sts, social workers, that are available to be
call ed by these sickest patients that we use data to
stratify, to identify who those patients are, and we
engage the famly, we engage the patient.

W have a honebound program so we will go
to the patient’s hone if we need to. W have di sease-
specific care plans to take care of conditions, such as
di abetes or heart disease, and we al so integrate
behavi oral heal th, because behavioral health exists in
al |l popul ations, and sone patients have what we call
conorbidities.

They have nedi cal probl ens, they have
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behavi oral health problens, and if you can take good care
of and address the behavioral health needs, that
sonetines is the key to taking care of the nedi cal needs,
and that is sonething that we’'re working to perfect, is
to integrate the two.

We utilize quality care coordi nators,
which call patients to remnd themto go see their
doctor, to remind themto get their blood test or have
their screening tools.

And, again, we follow patients, hospital,
skilled nursing, long-termcare, again, across the
continuum and it’s a physician-Ied network.

And, so, we absolutely have a comm t nent
to quality, and, certainly, in our nedical groups,
quality is not just a word that we throw around. W’ ve
actual ly achi eved the highest |evel of quality.

A very respected trade association, called
the California Association of Physician G oups, the
| argest in the country, has recognized us at the highest
| evel, achieving elite status four years in a row

Anot her respected association, |IHA has
recogni zed us for our clinical quality. W’ ve received
awards fromthe Departnent of Managed Health Care in

California, specifically, cardiovascul ar di sease,
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chol esterol control and di abetes, and these are sonme of
t he di sease-specific care plans that | spoke to on the
prior slide.

W’ ve achieved four to five STAR out of a
possi ble five star on our Medicare Health Plan Quality
and Performance Ratings.

l"mgoing to turn it over to Von

MR CROCKETT: Wiile we’'re very proud of
some of the quality achievenents that we’ ve done, | think
it’s also inportant for us to pause for just a nonment to
tal k about some of the m stakes we’ ve nade, and,
specifically, what were the causes of those m stakes?
What corrective actions have we taken, and what have we
| earned, in terns of how to nmake us a better organization
goi ng forward?

Specifically, as you' re aware, quality is
sonmet hing that’s being assessed on a daily basis, and it
is through one of those assessnents by our regul atory
agencies in California that it was identified that within
two of our 13 hospitals in California that two of the
facilities had a deficiency, specifically as it related
to what’s called the CV5 Medi care Conditions of
Parti ci pati on.

Specifically with that, there were
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violations wth what's called i medi ate j eopar dy.
Specifically, those inmedi ate jeopardy violations were in
one facility. W had an allegation of physician

m sconduct and then the organi zation’s response
associated with that, and then, in another facility, we
had i nmedi ate j eopardy associated with tenperature and
hum dity, specifically in the OR suites, and then, third,
t he washing of sterilization of surgical instrunments.

| wanted to spend just a second to talk
about the root cause associated, and in any event, where
there’s a breakdown in process or failure, it’s not
usual ly just one event.

Specifically, as it’s been discussed
bef orehand, we take great pride in making sure that each
of our hospitals have strong | ocal |eadership, and, with
that, we have delegated the quality prograns at an
i ndi vidual |evel down at the hospital level, and it was
bei ng managed and run at the hospital |evel.

Wthin both of these facilities, part of
the issue that we had was that we had turnover at the
executive ranks, as well as within some of the departnent
managers.

Wien there was a patient conpl ai nt nmade

and CV5 cane in to do the survey, not only did they find
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that in sone instances were that the care that was being
provi ded was not consistent with the policies that we had
in place, care was sonewhat inconsistent.

Additional ly, when they reviewed the
quality program what they found was a rigid program
where the organi zati on had adopted previously and
nodified to the issues that were at hand.

At the one facility that had the issues
wWith the tenperature and humdity and the washi ng of
sterilization, previously in the year there had been, as
we were doing construction within the building, there had
been an event, where there had been a small |ocalized
fire froma contractor up on the roof, which caused
substantial issues wth our HVAC system

That, in itself, is not the issue. The
I ssue was was that our response associated with that was
not sufficient to address the needs in resolving the
i ssue.

And when CMS cane in, they found that the
response shoul d have been a stronger response in making
sure that the issues are addressed.

Whien we | ook back at the root cause
associated with it, there are several issues with that.

The first of themis is that, as we had del egated the
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role of quality and the responses to the | ocal

| eadershi p, there could have been a stronger response
from Prospect Medical in making sure that as organization
-- that these two organi zati ons had when they had the
turnover that they had, that the appropriate resources
were provided to them at an executive |level, as well as,
al so, at the director level in resolving these very
specific -- in these very specific conplaints.

Once the deficiencies were identified by
CVB, and | wanted to point out one point, which is that,
on the imedi ate jeopardies that we got for all three, it
wasn't -- there was no patient harmthat was actually
dealt with, but it was nore of an issue that the care
that was being provided did not neet the conditions of
participation, and it wasn’t al so consistent with our
policies of what we had in place.

As soon as we had been notified by CV5 we
took inmediate action to nmaking sure that the issues were
resol ved there, as well as devel oping a corrective plan
for any of the other issues that they identified, in
addition to the i medi ate jeopardy.

We have previously disclosed these
deficiencies in detail to ECHN, as well as the Attorney

Ceneral’s Ofice and OHCA, previously to today’s
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t esti nony.

As part of that, we have discussed
extensively with ECHN and our quality counterparts to
review our corrective action plans to making sure that
they were appropriate and detail ed.

At a nore detailed |evel, when we talk
about the corrective actions, the first thing that we did
was we engaged a nationally-recogni zed consulting firm
and the purpose of themwas to do two things.

One of themis to cone and | ook at the
quality plans that were in place at both of these
organi zati ons and making themto be an organic and a
responsive quality plan to not only address the issues at
hand, but to make sure that the quality plan woul d be
responsive for any future issues that would arise within
t he organi zati on.

Secondl y, we have provi ded additiona
resources at the local level of the hospitals by adding
strong and experienced | eaders, as well as additional
capital resources at the facility to making sure that the
i ssues are addressed.

At a corporate level, we have nodified our
qual ity program by having additional oversight, not just

for these two facilities, but it will be for al
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facilities wthin Prospect.

The new oversight is going to consist of
we’ ve got four individuals that are already in place.
One of themis a Chief Quality Oficer, a Chief Cinica
Oficer, a Corporate Chief Nursing Oficer, and an
Associ ate Vice President of Regulatory and Patient
Safety.

The roles of these four individuals is,
first of all, is to nonitor the quality prograns at all
hospitals, and the point being there is making sure that,
A, that they're on track and that they' re responsive to
the i ssues that are being addressed in the organization
and that they' re tinely.

Secondarily is to provide additional
resources, if needed, to inplenment the program so in the
event that a hospital is lacking the resources, they can
provi de resources or identify what resources need to be
provi ded.

The third is making sure that, when the
quality goals are not being achieved within the
organi zation, is to help the organization to take
corrective actions in a tinely fashion.

Goi ng forward, one of the big things that

we anticipate happening is, instead of being reactive, we
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want to be proactive, and, to do that, we're going to be
| ooking to have the facilities be survey ready for both
the accrediting agencies, as well as the Departnent of
Heal t h.

And then, lastly, the corporate oversight
will assist in sharing the best practices anong the
various hospitals, and what we found is that, as we’ve
got multiple hospitals that have done very well in
multiple areas, is to bring those strengths and
weaknesses across the entire organi zation, so that we
have an organi zation that’'s stronger within the whole.

Lastly, our Quality Assurance and
Performance | nprovenent Plan is being revanped by a
national consulting firm and, wth that, we believe it
is going to be a nmuch stronger programfor all.

One of the things that was inportant when
we | ooked at the transaction, specifically for ECHN, was
that they had a very strong quality programto begin
wi th, and they have achi eved sone great results, and it
was inportant for us, as well as for them that they know
that we are going to continue on with their quality
program and our role in the oversight of it is to
provi de additional resources, if needed, the sharing of

best practices anong the various hospitals, and to
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provi de themresources that they may be |acking in any of
t he specific areas.

Wth that, ECHNis already -- is well on
the way for the high reliability organization, and that’'s
sonmet hing that not only do we support, but we’ve started
the process in Rhode Island, and we |ook to roll that out
actually in our California hospitals, as well, going
forward

We continue to work on the issues that
were raised by CV5, and we are confident that the
corrections that we have put into place not only will be
satisfactory, but that wll be shortly corrected.

And wth these changes, the organization
is going to be a nmuch stronger organi zation as a result
of that, not only for Prospect, but, also, in conbination
wi th ECHN.

Switching gears now for just a second,
want to spend just a few nonents on slide 10, and when
you | ook at what we hope to achieve in ECHN, it’s
inportant to take a | ook at what has been achieved in the
past year in Rhode |sland, and what exactly has Prospect
brought to the organi zation?

First of all, probably the nost

substantial is that, as we’ ve | ooked at the organi zation
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and the affiliation of the physicians, is that we have
formed a nulti-specialty I PA that’s now over 100-pl us
primary care physicians.

Part of that was through the enpl oynent of
physi ci ans, and part of that was through bringing
addi ti onal independent physicians into the organization.

W’ ve expanded out patient services within
the area, which includes an investnent in an outpatient
oncol ogy center, and this was all done as a result of
provi ding additional significant capital to them

The capital is partly being spent on
infrastructure needs and deferred mai ntenance, and the
other part of it is being through the devel opnent of our
relati onship with the physicians.

Al this is leading up to one of the
i ssues that’s facing Rhode Island nost substantially, is
they’ re a Medicaid expansion state, |ike Connecticut,
and, as such, their state budget is under substanti al
pressure in adding on the fee for service Medicaid
popul ation with that, as we’ve worked with the
legislation and we’re inplenenting a Medi cai d val ue- based
pilot program in terns of the managi ng of the Medicaid
lives that will hopefully be a solution for the state of

Rhode | sl and.
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When we | ooked at expansion to the east,
we | ooked at several factors that we felt woul d be
i nportant of making sure that our nodel is going to be
one that could be easily adopted and appropriate, and,
with that, we | ooked at Connecticut, specifically, and
there are specific things that are attractive for what we
bel i eve our nodel in Connecticut.

Wth that is a state that, first of all
is a Medicaid expansion state, and, with that, we believe
that there’s going to be a need for organizations to have
rel ati onships with both the health plan and the
physi ci ans that are non-adversarial and, instead, are
working for the better of the patient in providing care
and the outcones associated with that.

And, lastly, a state that is able to deal
wi th the changi ng | andscape fromboth a regul atory
perspective, as well as a | eadership perspective, as we
go through those changes.

What will this lead to? It will lead to
an organi zation, where, instead of having adversari al
rel ati onships that normally have existed traditionally in
health care, pitting players against players, health
pl ans and hospital and physicians, all working together,

in terns of providing better care to the patient.
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Wth that, we believe the patient wll
have hi gher satisfaction. W believe that this is going
to allow, then, for greater access for capital for ECHN
and, lastly, a sustainable nodel for health care that
will allow for these two community-based hospitals to
conti nue on.

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: Before we switch
gears, thank you, M. Crockett, for that, it would be
hel pful, I know you have submtted some information
relating to the imedi ate jeopardy findings, it would be
hel pful at sone point to have a sunmary of the status of
those matters, whether additional findings have been
made, the tinme frane for resolution, where you are in
t hat process.

For ny sake, at |east, and perhaps for
others, it would be helpful to have a sense of
perspective about what those kinds of findings and that
process nmean to a hospital, whether this is a unique
experience for the Prospect nedical system

|"minterested, also, to hear from ECHN
about its views about hel ping us put that process into
context, so we’'ll take that now or whenever, but, while
we’'re here today, it would be hel pful to hear about that.

MR CROCKETT: Let ne start off with the
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status and the timng. There's two, the two facilities
have got the two different inmmedi ate jeopardi es, and, so,
it needs to be separated, because they're on a separate
track froma timng and a resol ution

The first hospital is LA Community
Hospital, and it had to originally start off with the
al | egati on of physician m sconduct.

There was a -- we had put together our
pl an of correction, and that plan of correction had been
submtted back in late January, and, with that, we were
resurveyed by the Departnment of Health, CVM5, in the
m ddl e of February.

When they canme out to do the resurvey,
there were, | believe, approximately five or six
deficiencies that were in the original report, including
the i Medi ate j eopardy, and the issues that were
identified in the original report were nostly found to be
in conpliance, with the exception of two, and those two
were nursing care and infection control.

Specifically, on the infection control,
there was an issue, as related to the location of how the
instrunents were being -- where they were being
sterilized, and there was a recommendati on by one of the

surveyors to nove the location of the sterilization of
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the instrunents, as well as what's called our utility
roons, clean and dirty roons.

As it relates to the issues of patient
care, there were several findings associated with it,
and, once again, it was an issue of being inconsistent
Wi th our policies that had been put into place.

Specifically, there’s what’s called a plan
of care, and it’s kind of |like the roadmap nursing has
for when a patient cones in, in terns of what they hope
to achieve with the patient and what the goals of them
are, and what they found was is that the plan of cares
wer e inconsistent on a docunentation basis associ ated
with that.

The plan of correction fromthe resurvey
is due on April the 7th. W believe we'll either --
we' Il have it in by then or before then. Once the plan
of correction is ready to be submtted back to CV5 we
wi Il be providing that additional response to the
regul atory agencies, as well as ECHN, and, so, |
anticipate that will be |later next week that we’ll have
t hat .

Wth that, we anticipate CM5 to be out
shortly after that, and, currently, we’ve been extended,

internms of froma tineline, and it’s now the first part
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of June, in ternms of fromthe track that we’'re on with
CMVB.

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: Ckay, so, by way of
clarification, so participation in the programw || be
termnated by the first part of June, unless there is a
resol ution before then to CM5' s satisfaction?

MR CROCKETT: Correct.

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: Ckay.

MR. CROCKETT: Oiginally, it was April
13t h, and they have now extended it to the first part of
June.

For the Southern California Hospital, we
have, fromthe report that was previously given that was
the imediate -- well, there’'s two i medi ate j eopardi es.
One had to do with the tenperature and the hum dity,
specifically in the surgical suite, as well as in the
cath lab, and the second one had to do with the washing
of sterilization of surgical instrunents.

From when CVM5S is out there, when they give
out an inmmedi ate jeopardy, they actually don’t |eave the
facility until it’s abated during the survey process, and
what they | ook for when you put together your plan of
correction is making sure that not only was it abated,

but there’'s a process to continually nmonitor it, and that
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it doesn’t reoccur and go forward, and, so, as part of
our plan of correction, it was nmaking sure that whatever
policies and processes were put into place is to nmake
sure that they weren’'t to reoccur.

That plan of correction was submtted, and
it was submtted | ast week, and we have actually provided
a copy of that subm ssion to the regul atory agencies, as
well as to ECHN, and each of you should have that.

It’s detailed and very thorough and was
put together in conjunction and help with our national --
with our consulting firmto maki ng sure that the response
was appropriate and net Medicare’ s expectations with
t hat .

W expect for themto be on site.
Currently, the track that that is on, as it relates to
meeting the Medicare conditions of participation, |
believe it’s May 23rd, and, with that, we anticipate, now
that we have submtted the plan of correction, that they
will be on site shortly to | ook at our plan and naking
sure that the corrections that have been put into place
wer e appropri ate.

MR KARL: M. Zinn Row horn, there’'s two
points that 1'd like to make. One is the seriousness of

t hese events were put in a tineline docunent fromthe day
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we found out through the day that we felt as though all
the answers were brought to us satisfactorily, and we’d
probably like to add that as Late File No. 1, so you can
see the intensity of this.

Nunber two, | would like to bring forward
Linda Quirici, who is the Vice President of Quality Care
for ECHN, just to give an update on what we’ ve done and
what we’ ve found.

MR ZINN ROMHORN: W' Il be happy to take
that late file, and 1I'Il request that other docunents
submtted to CV5 or received fromCVS while our reviewis
pendi ng we’ d appreciate a copy of those being submtted.

| " m happy, also, to hear fromM. Quirici.
She should be sworn, | think, if she hasn’t already.

M5. LINDA QURI Cl: Good afternoon. My
name is Linda Quirici. | amthe Vice President of
Quality and Safety for Eastern Connecticut Health
Net wor K.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Coul d you j ust
speak into the m crophone?

M5. QURICl: Sure.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Thank you.

M5. QURC: Ckay, is that better?

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: That’s better.
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M5. QURC: Ckay, so, the Quality
Department was brought in on February 24th, told that
they nmeted jeopardies and of the need to reviewto give
our opinion on the quality process in the California
hospitals and the Rhode |Island hospitals, so we were very
involved in reviewng all of the records.

So, initially, they were the i mediate
j eopardi es that Von tal ked about, and the initial one was
t he physician m sconduct, and that was al ready a plan of
action was in place, that was already taken care of, and
that plan of action was put in place, and the response to
that we just got, and he spoke about that, so we reviewed
that in detail, as a matter of fact, this weekend.

W | ooked at all of the elenents of that
again. He nmentioned several things that were still
involved in the conditions of participation.

Wien | reviewed that, really nost of the
areas were deficiencies that m ght be seen in any
hospital, truthfully, and they are devel opi ng now their
pl an of correction for those deficiencies.

The ot her i medi ate jeopardi es that Von
tal ked about were in the Southern California hospitals.
W reviewed those in detail, as well, and we revi ened

their other areas that needed to have revi ew
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W also just got their plan of correction,
which we reviewed in detail. It is very conprehensive,
as they stated. They had a consulting conpany that cane
in, as well as legal assistance, to nmake sure that their
pl an was conprehensive and thorough, and it was, and |
bel i eve they have submtted that, so we reviewed that in
detail, as well.

So that was subm tted, and, when that
comes back, the findings, we wll also reviewthat to
make sure that things are conprehensive and that there is
nothing still outstanding, so that was reviewed by nyself
and two quality experts that are experts in the areas of
t he i mmedi ate jeopardy, which were the physician, which
were infection control and environnent of care safety, so
we made sure that we brought in our experts to review all
of that thoroughly.

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: Thank you. And has
ei ther ECHN hospital ever received an i nmedi ate | eopardy
notice?

M5. QURICl: Not inny tenure. And
sonmet hing inportant to notice is that 25 percent of
hospitals in California receive i medi ate j eopardy
findings, but, in Connecticut, imedi ate jeopardies are

very rare.
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So the hospital practices -- you know,
hospitals differ a little bit fromone coast to the
other. Again, we went to Rhode Island to see sonething
t hat’ s anal ogous, and our practices are anal ogous, and,
in California hospitals, you know, function a little bit
differently, as well as their regul atory agencies
function a little bit differently.

As a matter of fact, you know, quite
differently, to be honest with you, so the differences,
as far as having an i nmedi ate jeopardy, is nmuch nore
likely if youre in California than if you were in our
ar eas.

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: Were these the first
i mredi at e j eopardi es received by any Prospect hospital s?

MR. CROCKETT: No. There was an i medi ate
jeopardy in 2013, if I’mnot m staken, and, getting back
to the California |legislative process, the oversight is a
little bit different, but, at one of our hospitals, we
received a retroactive imedi ate jeopardy fromthree
years previously, and it had to do with -- it’s just a
different process in California, so it’s not the first.

As she stated previously froma context
perspective, within California, you know, one out of four

hospitals either has received or is receiving an
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i medi ate jeopardy, and, froma context perspective, it’s
all sorts of hospitals, everything from community-based
hospitals to very well-regarded academ c centers, UCLA
for one, and then, you know, out on the east coast,
Cleveland dinic was in a process, where they had an
extended period of time, where they had to deal with an

i ssue.

This is sonething, obviously, we take
extrenely serious, and we have put forth the resources,
additional resources to resolve it, not just to resolve
this issue, but to put in process to naking sure that we
don't get into this situation again.

MR. ZINN ROMHORN: 1’1l ask one nore.
know Attorney Salton has a question. And | know this is
not what anybody at that table expects, but | assune
that, if, in fact, CMVMS participation was term nated, that
that would have a material inpact on at |east those
hospital s and naybe Prospect’s financial condition
generally. AmI right to make that assunption?

MR. CROCKETT: | think it would be right
to say on any hospital that that would have an inpact on
it, not just Prospect, but any hospital.

It’s rare that it happens, and this is

really -- froma process perspective, CV5 doesn’'t have
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any way of doing what's called adm nistrative penalties,
so their only process of making sure that hospitals
comply with the Medicare conditions of participation is
it’s all or nothing, and, so, froman all or nothing
approach, is that when hospitals don't apply, then they
issue what’s called a term nation track, in order to get
hospi tal s back on track.

When you | ook at hospitals that haven’'t
been able to resolve the issues, it’s usually one of two
reasons.

One is usually because they're in a
process of going through a bankruptcy and actually don’t
have the resources, in order to resolve the issues that
have been addressed, or, two, that they don’t actually
have the ability, and, so, it’s very rare to actually see
a termnation, and we have 100 percent confidence that we
will be able to resolve these issues.

MR. ZINN ROMHORN: | gather that the
quality issues identified by CVS are |localized in two
facilities, but the way the licenses are structured in
California, that the imedi ate jeopardy is directed at
six hospitals. AmI correct about that?

MR. CROCKETT: That is correct. So the

license structure is that we have a consolidated |icense
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for each of the two |licenses in question, and there’s
three hospitals wthin each license, and there’'s a
i cense process that what you have stated is accurate.

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: Can you tal k, and,
again, | knowthis is not your expectation, as you just
said, but can you tal k about Prospect’s ability to
consummate this transaction financially, if, in fact,
those i Mmedi ate j eopardi es were effectuated, given how
this transaction is intended to be financed?

MR. ALEVMAN. W could absolutely finalize
this transaction. W’re not |ooking for financing for
this transaction and certainly carry through with the
commtnents as part of this transaction, including
capital investnments and so forth.

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: Thank you

MR, HENRY SALTON: If | could ask, being
famliar wwth the findings in the two i medi ate
jeopardies and in the continued finding of March 23rd of
the i Medi ate j eopardy and being famliar with the
regi onal oversight by regulators here, would you be
surprised that a regulator in this region would reach a
concl usi on of i mredi ate jeopardy, based on these sane
findi ngs?

M5. QURICI: | think so. | think so.
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t hi nk, again, we saw things that commonly we see in our
surveys, so they were nothing that stood out that woul d
be unusual, so | think that an inmedi ate | eopardy rel ated
to nost of the things that we saw woul d not have occurred
here, and | haven't, again, seen that in ny tenure.

MR. SALTON: And you're famliar, | think
| woul d assune, with the quality prograns that are being
done in ECHN, which now we understand are going to
continue by the seller on a going-forward basis?

M5. QURICl: Yes.

MR SALTON:. For at |east two years?

M5. QURICl: Yes.

MR SALTON: Wul d you expect that the
qual ity inprovenent prograns that you have adopted woul d
have prevented or greatly |l essened the Iikelihood of
t hese kind of violations at your two hospital s?

M5. QURICI: | think that we have a very
strong quality programand a very strong regul atory
program so, again, | saw very simlar things in the
Rhode Isl and hospital when we went and visited, so
whet her they would help in California, is that what
you’' re asking nme?

MR SALTON: Well I'mreally trying to

antici pate whether or not, and I think that Prospect has
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acknow edged that the Los Angel es hospitals needed to
upgrade their quality inprovenent progranmm ng and
planning, I'mtrying to say to you could we anticipate
that this is a neaningful renedy, the continuation of the
ECHN quality inprovenent prograns, that it woul d nost
likely preclude or |essen the |ikelihood of these

vi ol ati ons happening in our hospitals.

M5. QURICl: Absolutely. Absolutely.

And we are very strong in survey readiness, so that, in
and of itself, would preclude these things from happening
here and have precluded them from happeni ng here.

MR. SALTON: And let ne ask just one final
guesti on.

M5. QURICl: Sure.

MR. SALTON:. W're glad to hear whatever
you have to say. In the March 23rd finding, where there
were continued findings of problens with infection
control, nursing services, | think patient rights, they
had been identified in a prior survey.

I s your hospital’s experience that you
woul d have, is it common or rare, that you' d have a
continued finding on a resurvey of the sane types of non-
conmpl i ance and conditions of participation that were

identified in an earlier CV5 survey?
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M5. QURICl: [In Connecticut, |I have heard
t hat hospital s have that happen, sonetines once or tw ce.
It hasn’t happened in ny tenure that |’'ve had that, and |
have heard that in other hospitals. Sonetines, they are
resurveyed several tinmes if that is not corrected.

MR SALTON: In the context of immedi ate
| eopar dy?

M5. QURICl: No. | don't know about
that. | don’t personally know about that, but as far as
conditions of participation.

MR SALTON: Ckay, thank you.

M5. QUR C: Ckay.

MR ZINN ROMHORN:  And, to clarify, and
t hen perhaps we can get off this topic and nove on for
t he noment, but when you tal k about differences between
the regul atory environnent in Connecticut versus
California, you are tal king about the sanme regul ator and
the same regul ations, but tal king about different
regi onal applications?

M5. QURICl: That’'s absolutely right,
yes. D fferent nethodol ogies. There is a difference
between the two, as far as how they function and how t hey
run, so, yes, there are.

Again, I’mnuch nore famliar with this
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area of the country.

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: Under st ood. Thank
you. And 1’1l just highlight, bookmark. W heard that a
concern in California was that there was perhaps too nuch
| ocal i zed control over quality, and there’s now a
comm tnent to backstop | ocal hospital quality control.

W’ ve al so heard that there’'s a comm t nent
to retaining ECHN' s control over, localized control over
quality, which, in light of this discussion, sounds |ike

a good idea, so if you have other comments about

reconciling those statenents, | think we’d be pleased to
hear them

MR. CROCKETT: 1’1l start off. First of
all, when we | ooked at -- one of the things that was
inmportant for us, as well, is |ooking at what their

quality programwas, and they provided us not only their
quality program but they provided us, in terns of
patient satisfaction, risk managenment and mnultipl e ot her
practices, and we put that through in conparisons to how
we have revised our quality program
Getting back to your point, the program

that they have currently for ECHN | think is a very good
program and | think that it would have prevented sone of

the things associated with it, so, fromour perspective
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it was an easy decision for us to adopt what they
currently have and the commtnent to maintain it.

Part of the reconciliation is quality is
an ongoing thing that is evolving and changi ng, as well,
and within our corporate oversight, there’s two things
that we actually will be taking on as kind of a corporate
initiative, and it will be hospital-acquired infections
and then, also, fall prevention.

So when we tal k about corporate oversight
and ensuring best practices, what we hope to do, not just
for our Prospect hospitals, but, also, for ECHN, is for,
in those specific areas, |ook to inprove their
performance on a go-forward basis, as well, and that is
really kind of what the whol e expectation is of the
over si ght.

DR LEW Perry, | want to just add
anot her comment regardi ng separation and allow ng the
| ocal hospitals to nmaintain, whether it be through an
agreenent, but, also, point to what we’ ve done in
Charter CARE in Rhode Island in supporting their
initiative to becone a high reliability organi zati on.

| know Lester Schindel, the CEO of
CharterCARE, | believe he was going to be here today, and

we al so brought in soneone by the name of KimLuma from
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Connecticut, who actually is supporting Les in this
effort, so that’s just a |live exanple of how we support
the local initiative to becone a high reliability
organi zation. Agreenment or no agreenent, this is what
our nodel is going to be.

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: Thank you. So we can
nove on

MR. SPEES: Thank you. Good afternoon. |
just want to nmake a few comments about sone of the key
commtnents as part of the transaction froma transaction
st andpoi nt .

Sonme of these were touched on by Peter in
his remarks, but 1’1l just amplify a little bit. The
first two points are the key financial terns of the
transaction, purchase price of $105 mllion and capita
expendi tures of $75 mllion.

What ' s significant about the purchase
price is not just that it represents fair market val ue,
but, as Peter nentioned, it really, when conbined with
ECHN s existing resources, allows all of the long-term
debt of the health systemto be paid off. That frees up
over $9 mllion worth of annual funds that used to go to
payi ng down debt and nakes them avail abl e for

reinvestnent in the health system

POST REPORTI NG SERVI CE
HAMDEN, CT (800) 262-4102



© 00 N o o -~ w N Pk

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N PP O O 00 N O O B W N +—» O

70
HEARI NG RE: ECHN AND PIVH
MARCH 29, 2016

And with respect to the capita
expenditure commtment, | think it’s inportant to note
that this is a mninumcapital conmtnent on the part of
Pr ospect.

W have access to capital, and we're in
t he business of investing capital in our facilities to
hel p them grow and performbetter, so while we’ve nade
this mninmumcommtnent to the extent that there’'s a need
and appropriate investnent of additional capital, we have
the resources to do that.

In addition to the financial commtnents,
we' ve made a commtnent to nmaintain the current charity
care policy, so that, as Mtchell nentioned in his
presentation, Prospect really is about access and
provi ding access to people, and this was a way to assure
the community that the existing charity care policies
wi Il remain unchanged, or, if we do make any
nodi fications, they will be at |east as favorable, if
not, nore favorable going forward.

One thing that’'s really inportant to
recogni ze in these transactions is that this is a very
|l ong-termcommtnent, so we’'re not just talking about
what’ s going to happen in the next year or two years, but

we’' re tal king about 10 and 20 years down the road, and,
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so, this commtnent gives assurance to the conmunity.

W al so, as has been nentioned severa
tinmes, while we’re a Californi a-based conpany, we’'re very
commtted to and understand that health care is a | oca
busi ness, and we provi de corporate resources and support
toreally help the | ocal managenent team and Board of
Directors make the key decisions with respect to the day-
t o-day operations, and, so, we’'ve commtted to maintain
managenent here locally and a | ocal Board of D rectors,
which 1'Il talk a little bit nore about in a second, and
we’'ve commtted to the existing nedical staff, so, as of
the close of the transaction, all of the existing nmenbers
of the nedical staff wll beconme nenbers of the nedica
staff of Prospect Medical Hol di ngs.

In addition, we’ve al so nade the
commtnent to nmaintain the services that are currently
provided in the community, and our final commtnent is to
t he enpl oyees, and we’ve commtted that, as of the
closing, we'll hire all enployees in good standing.

That begs the question, as to what does
good standi ng nmean, which I will answer, and that is that
we actually performa single screen on the enpl oyees, and
that’s to nake sure that none are on the Ofice of

| nspector General’'s excluded list fromparticipation in
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the Medicare. That’s the only condition to becom ng an
enpl oyee of Prospect Medical.

And then, as we’ve discussed earlier, we
have signed this quality commtnent |etter, which, again,
could be viewed as a very m ni numconm tnent, and, as
we’ ve di scussed on several occasions, you know, we're
commtted to grow and expand our quality care services.

Alittle bit about the |ocal Advisory
Board. This is really key for Prospect. As the | ocal
resource to assist our nmanagenent team and our conpany in
bei ng the best community nenber that we can, we really
partner with the local Board, and it serves as a resource
to the governing Board on a nunber of matters,
particularly providing input into the capital plan that
we’' || devel op post-cl osi ng.

| just wanted to nention, with respect to
the capital plan, that the $75 mllion, in addition to
being a mnimum it’s not just, you know, bricks and
nortar and equi pnent that is part of that capital
investnment, so it’s not necessarily capital in the
traditional sense of accounting, but it’s really an
investnent in the health care system in total, and it
will be Iikely, as part of our strategic plan, wll be

invested in increasing access points in the community,
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whet her that’s through new urgent care or anbul atory
centers, as Mtchell nentioned, or adding physician
prospects and growi ng the physician network, maybe an

i nvestnment in behavioral health resources, so that really
is an investnent in devel oping the overall coordinated
regional care systemin the community.

The | ocal Advisory Board, in addition to
providing input into that capital plan and our overall
strategic plan, really will be responsible for nuch of
t he day-to-day oversi ght of key hospital prograns.

Those include, particularly, oversight of
all of the accreditation prograns, so the Board will be,
the local Board will be principally responsible to
oversee the accreditation of the hospitals going forward.

It will be delegated authority on the
nmedi cal staff credentialing, so all issues of nedical
staff credentialing will be handled by the | ocal Board.

In addition, we will expect, you know,

i nput and communi cation fromthe |local Board, in terns of
all of our growmh initiatives, including physician
recruitment.

And, again, recognizing that this is a
| ong-term process, in the event there is any sort of

| eader shi p successi on down the road, then we woul d | ook
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to the local Board for participation in that process, as
wel | .

MR. ZINN ROMHORN: Can | ask one foll ow
up there, which is if you could talk a little bit about
the process and tine frane by which decisions wll be
made, as to spending down that $75 mllion capital
comm t nent ?

MR, REARDON: Hi. This is Tom Reardon.
Everything is local. Everything starts locally, | should
say, and, so, we will be consulting with the |ocal Board
and with the | ocal managenent team and they will create
a strategic plan.

W' Il push back. W' |l have give and take
onit, but it’s a process that we go through. So, in
Rhode Island, what we agreed to there, as | recall, and |
may be wrong on the exact nunbers, but ny recollectionis
that we agreed that we woul d have a strategic plan within
six nonths of close, and then we would sit down with the
Attorney Ceneral’s Ofice and orally present that plan
rather than put it in the public record, and | think we
can make the sane kind of comm tnent here.

MR. ZINN ROMHORN: Do the transaction
docurents tal k about a time frame by which that $75

mllion will be expended?
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MR. SPEES: They do. The actua
comm tnent in the purchase agreenment is, within five
years following the closing, the $75 mllion has to be
invested or commtted in sone way to be invested.

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: Thank you

MR. REARDON: Again, |I'’m Tom Reardon. Let
me comment on this slide 15. Please note that it says
Heal th Care Delivery Mdel

We are not a hospital-centered conpany.
W' re actually a physician-centered conpany that thinks
about popul ati on managenent, and that’s the way we
appr oach thi ngs.

We really truly believe that it’'s better
care for the comunity. W don’t have to open
everything. We will do a coordinated regional care
programthat includes community nental health, and
surgery centers, and all kinds of different community
providers to get the best care to a person at the | owest
cost at the appropriate tine, and that is our notto, and
we think we do it very well.

Qur nodel enmpowers | ocal physicians. W
partner very well w th managed care plans, but even when
managed care plans are trying to work with you, it’s

difficult for themto get to you the right data, and, so,
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we have an infrastructure with respect to popul ation
managenent that does all kinds of things.

W even do clains processing, not because
we think it’s a very sexy business, but that’'s how we get
the data, and when you get del egated functions fromthe
managed care plans and you do anal ytics and you do
medi cal managenent, the physicians actually know how to
do this.

As much as the MCOs try to do it, they
don't do it as well as the physicians and other comunity
providers do it, so that’s our notto. That’'s the way we
approach it.

And the physicians really do fee
enpowered. | did see, Mtchell, by the way, that Les
Schindel and Kimdid cone in. |In Rhode Island, | would
say maybe a third of all the physicians, primary care
physi ci ans that have joined the | PA there, have joined,
because they |l ove the nodel. It enpowers them

Rat her than have a managed care conpany
say, no, you have to have prior authorization, they' re
maki ng t hose deci sions how to best expend noni es.

And the trouble with fee for services
there’s no noney to do popul ati on managenent with rea

risk contracts, which is what we’re tal king about. Is
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there noney to do the right thing? And the physicians
love it.

In ternms of maintaining and creating | ocal
jobs, we’'re a grow h conpany. W’ ve never closed a
hospital. W don't shrink hospitals. W grow hospitals.
Sam Lee, our CEQ, has a wonderful mantra; nore and better
for less. |If we do a better job and we do it for |less
nmoney, we're going to get nore patients, and that’s what
we’ ve seen over, and over, and over again. It really
does wor k.

In terns of extensive corporate resources,
John has touched on that, but we have all kinds of
things. Because we’ve worked with a |lot of safety net
hospitals, we have really devel oped sone very good dat a-
driven managenent tools.

W’ re not tal king about slash and burn
here. W’ re tal king about process reengi neering, and
there’s all kinds of other corporate support that we can
provide, in terns of savings on purchases of all kinds of
material and the like, so there’s a whol e host of things
we can bring.

Again, I'lIl go back to the Charter CARE
exanple. M recollection, and Les can correct nme on

this, is, when we started at CharterCARE, all the
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enpl oyees had a Blue Cross and Blue Shield contract.
Wien we took over, all the enpl oyees had a Blue Cross and
Bl ue Shield contract.

The difference was we’'re now sel f-insured,
and ny recollection is that we dropped sonething |ike
$1.6 or $1.7 million to the bottomline, because of our
ability to fund a self-insurance program so there’'s a
whol e host of things we can bring to help the | ocal
managemnent .

Again, maintain |local |eadership with
regi onal oversight, all health care really is local, and
we really support that with regional oversight. Wether
it’s quality or other issues, we wll have input on these
t hi ngs.

I nvesting in capital and facility services
and technologies, 1'll go back to John’s conments.

Again, we're tal king about a health care delivery nodel
here, so it’s not just about putting a new facade on a
hospital. 1It’s a whole host of things, in terns of

creating this whol e coordi nated regi onal care network.

Charity care policies, yes, we’ ve already
t al ked about preserving charity care policies.

Coul d you go to that |ast slide, John, for

me, please? O second to |ast slide.
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Way Prospect? Well we are commtted to
Connecticut. W really are into the northeast in a big
way, and it’s not just because | live in Boston and can
drive down to Connecticut nore easily than fly sonewhere.

We have the two hospitals in Rhode Island.
W’ re trying to acquire three hospitals in Connecticut.
W' re close to, well, we’ve already signed an APA. W're
close to finalizing a deal in the Philadel phia region
with five hospitals.

And why do we like the northeast? W |ike
t he northeast, because, frankly, there's very little
managed care penetration in the sense that we think of,
with real risk contracting and downside risk contracting
and del egated functions.

If you look at the SIM the State
| nnovati on Mbdel, and what Connecticut is trying to do,
they’'re trying to nove, as | recall, 80 percent of
patients to val ue-based paynents within tw years.

Well we actually know how to do that.
W’ ve been doing it for 30 years, and you can’t convince
sonmebody overnight. Wth Blue Cross in Rhode Island,
they cane out to see us a dozen tinmes. Well | don't know
if it was a dozen tinmes. They cane out many tines to see

what our infrastructure | ooked |Iike and what we did, and
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t hey becane convi nced.

And, so, in Rhode Island now, we do have
the first risk contract in the state. W do have a
Medi caid pilot project, which reduces cost. W even
commtted to Blue Cross and Bl ue Shield, because the
office of its Health I nsurance Comm ssioner asked for a
15 percent reduction of prem um product.

W’ ve cone together wth them on a product
that actually provides a 15 percent reduction in prem unms
for small groups, for small enployers, so we actually do
know how t o save noney by devel opi ng a coordi nat ed
regi onal care program

So we actually think that, when you take a
| ook at the netrics in Connecticut and Pennsyl vani a and
Rhode Island, again, for every thousand patients, how
many days will they spend in a hospital bed?

| don’t recall the nunbers in Connecticut,
but | think it’s like 1,400 days, and sone of our
hospitals were down in the 700s, so if you can keep a
patient out of a hospital, but you can take care of them
even better, with nore dignity, in their home or in
anot her setting, it’s better for everybody. It really
does wor k.

So we think we actually can hel p be

POST REPORTI NG SERVI CE
HAMDEN, CT (800) 262-4102



© 00 N o o b~ w N Pk

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N O O B W N +— O

81
HEARI NG RE: ECHN AND PIVH
MARCH 29, 2016

transformative in the way health care is delivered in
Connecticut, and we're really excited about the
opportunity.

The initial conversations with the
physi ci ans and the devel opnent of the |IPAs are going
swwnmmngly. W’re pretty excited about it all

So to the last slide, John? Again, we're
all about the triple aim You probably can’t guess this
fromlooking at nme, but |1’ve actually been around for a
couple of years, and | joined Prospect about three and a
hal f years ago, because | was so enanored with the nodel.

| actually do believe that this nodel can
hel p nove us toward a triple aimof higher quality, |ower
cost and hi gher patient satisfaction, so that’s what
we’' re about, and that’'s what we’'d love to work with ECHN
on, ECHN in devel oping here in Connecti cut.

That concl udes our Direct Testinony.
Thank you for your attention.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Thank you.
Thank you, all. At this point, let’s take a 15-mnute
break, and we’ll go back on the record 15 m nutes from
now. Thank you.

(O f the record)

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Wl cone back,
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everyone. Thank you for that presentation. That was
wonderful. W’re going to go to OHCA's questions at this
point, so | don’t know who wants to start. M. Lazarus?

MR LAZARUS: | will. Good afternoon.
Steven Lazarus. |I'’mgoing to address the questions
possibly to one or two people at a tine, and you're
wel cone to bring up anyone --

VO CES: M crophone.

MR. LAZARUS: Can you hear ne now?

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Move this up a
little bit.

MR, LAZARUS: |Is that better? Al right.
M. Crockett, in your testinony, you say that PMVH now has
hired a Chief Quality Oficer, a Ainical Oficer, Senior
Chief Nursing Oficer and a VIP Regul atory and Pati ent
Safety person. Wen were these positions filled?

MR, CROCKETT: The Chief Quality Oficer
position, actually, her first day is on April the 4th,
Monday, and the other three positions were filled
approxi mately about 45 to 60 days ago, and they're
currently working on the resolution at our two facilities
as we speak.

MR LAZARUS: And how were these duties

and responsibilities covered before filling these

POST REPORTI NG SERVI CE
HAMDEN, CT (800) 262-4102



© 00 N o o b~ w N PP

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N O O B W N +—» O

83
HEARI NG RE: ECHN AND PIVH
MARCH 29, 2016

positions at PVH?

MR, CROCKETT: At the corporate |evel, we
really didn’t have the positions, and, so, it was
del egated to the local entities to a certain degree, and,
so, what we’'re hoping to do with these positions is to
provi de the additional oversight in making sure that, as
the goals are either being nmet or not net, that we | ook
at resources that are being expended and provi de them as
necessary.

MR LAZARUS: Wat will these positions
bring to mtigate an occurrence of immedi ate jeopardy in
our Connecticut hospital s?

MR. CROCKETT: Part of the issue that we
got cited on was that the Quality Assurance and
Per f ormance | nprovenent Plan wasn’t dynam c, and, as the
organi zati ons were experiencing the difficulties that
they had, it wasn’t nodified to address those issues,
and, so, they cane in and they saw the quality prograns
off to the left, and the organi zation was noving in a
separate direction going forward.

As organi zations go through their various
accreditation surveys or they have issues arise
associated wth any type of other surveys, those findings

are inputted into a quality program so that you can do
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the nonitoring and the conpliance to those things on a
go-forward basi s.

To be blunt, that’s what did not occur
within our quality programat the facilities. They
continued to be nonitoring things that were not outdated,
but just not conpletely as relevant, so | esson | earned.
This is to nmake sure that the quality programis updated
not just once a year, but actually whenever the issues
need to be updated, and that’s actually one of the things
that we’'re hoping to achieve with these individuals.

M5. KIM MARTONE: Kim Martone, OHCA staff.
You had stated in your testinony that you' re currently
revanping the Q QA progranf

MR CROCKETT: Correct.

M5. MARTONE: Can you give us a sunmary at
all, internms of what it contains, when it will be
avai l able, who is involved in revanping it?

MR. CROCKETT: Yeah, sure. |If we haven’'t
al ready provided you wwth the Quality Assurance and
Per f ormance | nprovenent Pl an, we can do so, and we w ||
be happy to do so.

It started off with two issues. First,
meki ng sure that the 2016 national patient safety goals

are addressed associated within the quality program and
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that’s nore fromjust a kind of an oversight unbrella.

Specifically, each of the two
organi zations wthin that, you know, the issues that have
been addressed or identified in the current CV5 survey
are included in the program so, for the one facility,
we're | ooking at tenperature and humdity, we’'re | ooking
at infection control, we’'re | ooking at nursing services.

For the other facility, once again, we
want to make sure that the quality programis not a
cookie cutter, and, so, it’s nodified to the issues
specific that were at the LA Comunity facility.

The ot her aspect associated with the
quality programis nmaking sure that each of the different
departnents have a quality neasure that they' re
participating in, as well, and that was anot her
deficiency that we had, which is that we had -- that
wasn’'t seen as being conpleted froma house-w de
perspective, and, so, with that, you should see a
conpr ehensi ve programto nonitor

M5. MARTONE: Ckay.

MR LAZARUS: Can you please identify each
of the individuals, and tell us what experience do these
i ndi viduals have in working with |large health care

systens and ensuring quality inprovenent, patient safety
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i ssues of the hospital networks?

MR, CROCKETT: Sure. The Chief Quality
O ficer has just previously held a position as a
divisional quality expert for HCA. | believe it was over
the western division for HCA. | don't know t he exact
nunber of hospitals, but it was for about half of the
conpany.

Wth that, she had the responsibility for
the quality program oversight, patient safety and
devel oping the policies and process and reporting tools
and ki nd of assuring of best practices wthin the HCA
division, and that will be the Chief Quality Oficer

The Chief Cinical Oficer previously was
inasimlar role for Kindred and was responsible for the
clinical effectiveness of nursing care for the Kindred
Cor por at i on.

The background for the Corporate Chief
Nursing O ficer, she’s fromthe east coast and has held
multiple Chief Nursing Oficer roles within various
conpani es, and | can provide further background
associ ated with her.

The position for the regulatory affairs
and patient safety has al so extensive experience, and |

don’t know it off the top of ny head, but | can provide
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that, as well.

M5. MARTONE: Yes. If you could provide
us a late file of their resunes, we' d appreciate it.

MR. CROCKETT: Yeah, | can do that. |It’s
not a probl em

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: | just want to
clarify the record. The resunes will be Late File No. 3,
and Late File No. 2 will be the Quality Perfornmance
| mprovenent Plan that you referenced earlier

MR. CROCKETT: Actually, nore than likely,
it would be 2, because, as | said, they're two different
pl ans; one for the LA community and one for the Southern
Cal i fornia hospital

M5. MARTONE: Could you just nake sure
they’'re dated, as well, so we know the date that they' re
actually going into effect?

MR CROCKETT: Sure.

M5. VOLPE: If we’'re nunbering late files,
| believe ECHN wanted to submt an outline, as well, as
part of the late file.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: The tine line is

MB. VOLPE: And 2 is the CWVB?
HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Two is the
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Quality Performance | nprovenent plan or plans, and No. 3
are the resunes.

M5. VOLPE: Ckay and we'd also like to
submt the Corrective Action Plan we nentioned that’s due
on or about April 8th into the office regarding CVME s
corrective action.

MR. CROCKETT: And that’'s for the LA
community |icense resurvey.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: (kay, so, the
Corrective Action Plan will be Late File No. 4.

M5. VOLPE: Geat. Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Thank you.

M5. MARTONE: And just one nore question.
Do you anticipate any changes to those quality assurance
pl ans, based on any -- these surveys, the results of any
of these surveys?

MR. CROCKETT: You nean in terns of the
ones that were just revised?

MB. MARTONE: Right.

MR CROCKETT: Well that’s actually one of
the things that we're going to do differently. As any
i ssues cone up that are new, we’'re going to nodify the
program so the answer is that, in any hospital that we

have, as issues are identified froma CM5 perspective,
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the quality prograns will be adjusted to make sure that
the nonitoring goes, so the answer is yes.

M5. MARTONE: Ckay and then, as Chief
Quality O ficer, she obviously, or he, will have a say?
|’massumng wll be assessing the hospitals and the
quality of prograns, and is there anything she’'s going to
be doi ng when she begi ns or he begins next week, in terns
of reevaluating these current issues and chal |l enges?

MR, CROCKETT: Yeah, several things. The
first issue is that we're going to be asking her --
she’ Il be looking at -- her nanme is Debbie Barry, but
she’ |l be | ooking at any of the forner either Joint
Comm ssion and/or survey results that the facilities had
and | ooking at the responses that they had, and the
guestion is were the responses appropriate, and were they
conpete, and, nore inportantly, are the facilities
continuing on wwth the work that they had said that they
were going to do with the correction of these facilities,
and that’s, obviously, for all of them all of the
Prospect hospitals.

Cobvi ously, we’ve got the two that are the
nmost inportant at the nonment. That it will be her role
of making sure the conpliance with our plan of

corrections to CMS.
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M5. MARTONE: Thank you.

MR. LAZARUS: Wat is PWH s plan to
contract wwth a patient safety organization if they
acqui re ECHN?

MR. CROCKETT: At the nonent, what we have
commtted tois to continue to -- any quality prograns
that they have currently in place we’'re going to maintain
t hat .

In terms of future plans, that will be
done in conjunction with the |ocal Advisory Board and
with ECHN in consultation with direction fromour Chief
Quality Oficer.

MR LAZARUS.: As a result of the survey, |
think it was in your testinony that PVMH hired a
consulting firmto review the operations and policies and
the procedures in California.

Based on the recommendati ons, PMH
i npl enented new ones. Can you pl ease el aborate on
findings or recoormendations of the consulting firn? What
new policies and procedures were inplenented?

MR, CROCKETT: There’'s actually a couple
of things, and let ne just tal k about the process first
of all, then I'll get into sone of the nore specifics.

There were two things that were occurring.
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The first one that was alluded to is that the hospitals
recently, in the past couple of years, have gone through
a license consolidation, and, as part of the |icense
consolidation, one of the things that's inportant is
maki ng sure that the policies are consistent within that
license, and, so, the first thing that they were | ooking
for was making sure that the facilities not just only had
a consistent policy, but they were actually practicing
consistently to the policy, so that was nunber one.

The second thing that they | ooked for is
that they would take a | ook at the policy, specifically,
as it related to the Medi care conditions of
participation, and what had happened over a period of
years, we’ve gone through multiple surveys by various
regul atory agencies, is they had taken a base policy, and
what ever the issue at the nonment was was that they woul d
add on top of it, and it becane an unworkabl e policy that
was really kind of a configuration of multiple past
surveys that they thought there were doing right.

And what happened, specifically associ ated
with |ike our tenperature and humdity issue, the intent
of what was put in our policy was, for the right reasons,
was unwor kabl e.

Specifically, our policy stated on
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tenperature and humdity that the organi zation was to
check the tenperature and hum dity every hour and nake
adj ustnents accordingly, and that’s regardless if there
was a surgery being perfornmed there or not. The practice
isis that that's actually not a CV5 condition of
participation, nor is it a requirenent, so when they

| ooked at our practice and saw that it wasn’t consistent
with our policy, we got cited for it, in addition to

ot her t hings.

So they went through all of our policies
and | ooked at the operations of the organization,
streant i ned the operations consistent with CVS
participation, so that, as we practice, that we' re going
to be consistent with them so using the tenperature and
humdity as an exanple, it was revised to reflect that we
check the tenperature and humdity at the start of the
day, which is about 4:30 in the norning, and nmake
adjustnents, if it’s necessary, associated with that, and
then we then check the tenperature and humdity before
each case, making sure that there’ s proper versus what we
had in the past for checking every single hour.

They went through all of our policies
related to nursing care and nade simlar type of

adjustnents. The total nunber of policies that were
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changed, | don’'t have it off the top of ny head, but I
believe it’s over 45 of policy nodifications that were
recently inputted.

MR LAZARUS: Based off the 45 policies
that were nodified, are any of these policies and
procedures that were specific to California are they
going to be inplenented in other PVH hospitals that are
in Texas and Rhode | sl and?

MR CROCKETT: At the nonent, we're
actually focused just on California, and, once we have
our Chief Quality Oficer and we get past our survey
status and we have the individual in place with her team
the anticipation is then we take our revised policies and
take a look at, then, the policies at the other
facilities and identify if there’'s streamining that
needs to occur and/or are they adherent to the policies,
and that would be kind of a step two that woul d happen
down the road.

MR, LAZARUS: Ckay, now, who is the
consulting firmthat you had hired?

MR CROCKETT: W hired two. The
consultant firmis called the Geeley Conpany, and you
can either find themon the web or we can provide the

information, but it’s a nationally-recognized firmthat
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works with CV5, and then we hired a local law firm
cal | ed Hooper and Lundy, so, in tandem the two of them
are assisting us in our response back to CVB.

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: When you say work for
CVB, do you nean specialize on CV5-rel ated i ssues?

MR. CROCKETT: Specialize in CV5, in
resol ving i ssues when hospitals get sideways with CVB

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: Ckay, thank you

MR SALTON: So is that the firmthat did
the review, your conprehensive review, or are they just
doing the review for CVB purposes?

MR. CROCKETT: It is the sane firm
They’'re reviewing the policies, and they al so were
responsi ble for the redefining and the devel opnent of a
quality program the Quality Assurance Program as well,
as well as in assisting us in our response back to CMV5,
and they’'re still on site and will continue to be on site
until we resolve and pass the survey.

MR LAZARUS. Now PMH has agreed to
mai ntain the respective quality prograns that you just
stated for two years. Can you explain why two years?

MR. CROCKETT: Sinply, there really isn’t
actually a magi ¢ nunber to the two-year mark. It was

nore of an issue of starting off wth a transaction of
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taking a look at their quality program and the question
is wll PWVH change their quality programor maintain it,
and the answer is, very sinplistically, we took a | ook at
it, and the answer was that they have a great program
and we don’t anticipate nmaking any changes to the

progr am

The i ssue of why the two-year mark, the
answer al ways gets back to the question of how do things
change within the health care industry within two years
and what new things will occur, and we want to nake sure
that, as we inprove Prospect’s quality program that we
don’t have an entity that is going to be isolated, so it
was strictly that.

It is nmeant to be a pl acehol der, and then,
as the organi zati ons have worked together for two years
and we noved forward, it was just a placeholder, is
really what it was.

MR LAZARUS: Ckay. You also submtted a
qual ity assurance conmtnent with ECHN at the begi nning
of the hearing. Could you talk a little bit about that
and discuss it fromthe details incorporated in there?

MR. CROCKETT: Yeah, so, the commtnent is
several fold, and it really, then, or I think relates

back to one of the original questions that we had just
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before the break, which is how does the |ocal |eadership,
as well, conmply with kind of a corporate oversight, and I
think the three of themkind of tie together

The commtnent starts off with this is it.
There’s nmultiple things that ECHN is currently doing on
their quality program A, their quality program two,
the |l evel of staffing that they have associated with it
and the people that are doing it, three, they're
participating and have been | ong participants in the high
reliability organization, and they’ ve got some ot her
internal prograns related to patient satisfaction, risk
and some ot her of those neasures.

So the comm tnent we have is not only just
to maintain the program but to, A mintain staffing
and/ or inprove the staffing and nmaintain all the current
things that they' re currently doing.

The other thing is that, fromtheir visit
t hat they had when they went to Rhode Island, there were
some things that our CharterCARE facility was actually
doing that they would actually like to bring down to
ECHN, so our commtnent to themis that anything that
we’'re doing in any of our other organizations then we
wi Il make sure that the right resources are brought into

ECHN, as well, too.
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So, very specifically, how we | ook at the
quality is that we’'re going to, A maintain it, and, two,
anything we do to change it is going to be an add-on, and
it’s going to be done in consultation with ECHN

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: Steve, can | ask one
guesti on?

MR LAZARUS. Yes.

MR ZINN ROMHORN: | neant to ask you
before. You referenced that designation of high
reliability organization a couple of tinmes. Can you tel
me what that is? Wo bestows that? Wat it signifies?

MR. CROCKETT: Yeah. A high reliability
organi zation it’s actually a formal programthat an
organi zation commts to, and it’s a |ong-term conmm t nent,
and the goals of a high reliability organization are to
make sure that the processes that are put into place
protect the patients and provide a safe environnent for
the patients to receive care.

It’s a significant conmtnent, not just in
financial, but in organizational tine and energy
associated with it, and it |ooks at not only the
processes that are occurring in the organi zation, but,
nore inportantly, making sure the organization is

comm tted to understandi ng when it doesn’t work and
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fixing the processes, so that the organizati on becones
consistent in howthe care is actually being delivered
and reducing the variability and inproving the outcones.

And, so, organizations that participate in
it, they do go through outside training specifically to
it, and they go through outside audits to nmake sure that
they are continuing with what they' re doing and the
reporting associated with it.

We actual ly have seen, you know, | think
the Connecticut facilities this is an initiative that’'s
been done for a while now in Connecticut. W were
introduced to it through our work with CharterCARE in
Rhode Island, and, over this past year and a half, we’'ve
been so inpressed with the work that they’ ve done up in
Rhode Island that we're | ooking now to actually roll it
out into our other facilities in California and Texas.

MR ZINN ROMHORN: It’s a privately
granted accreditation?

MR. CROCKETT: | don’t know the answer to
t hat .

MR ZINN ROMHORN: It’s not a governnent
desi gnati on?

MR. KARL: No. No. You volunteer to

becone designated as an HRO. Just if | can put it in a
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nutshell, if you don’t mnd, the State hospitals woul d
commt to a CHA, Connecticut Hospital Association,
commtted to becomng a high reliability organizati on,
and it alnost, again, in a nutshell, it alnost follows
the pilot’s checklist, okay? Anyone can stop the line.
It goes all the way down to the issues that we deal with
with the right side surgery, correct side surgery and so
on and so forth.

It enpowers everyone in the organization
I f they see sonmething that doesn’'t seemto be happening
that’ s appropriate, they can put their hand up and stop
it, without any type of repercussions, whether they're
telling a physician you need to stop here, | think we
have a problem and that’s in a nutshell what HRO i s.

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: Thank you. That’s
all.

MR LAZARUS:. | have a couple of questions
for Ms. Dorin. You had testified that you visited PWVH
hospitals in California. Which ones did you visit?

M5. DORIN. We visited Southern California
at Culver Gty.

MR LAZARUS: And you revi ewed
docunent ati on you had nentioned earlier at those

hospi tal s?
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M5. DORIN: Not there. W reviewed
docunentation on our visit to the Rhode Island hospitals.

MR LAZARUS:. Ckay, so, what did you
review at the California hospitals in your visit?

M5. DORIN.  Well it was actually I would
say it was nore of a visit than a review. | nean there
were several of us from ECHN and several Prospect nenbers
that went to the hospital

W spoke with a nunber of different
departnents, and we did sone site tours. W were on a
couple of different floors of the hospital.

MR LAZARUS: So what was your goal for
visiting the hospitals in California?

M5. DORIN. Well, as part of the process
for selecting an acquisition partner, we felt that we
really needed to sort of see what was going on firsthand
and in person, so that was the primary intent, to go out
and put, you know, faces to nanmes and to see how
enpl oyees are operating in the hospitals.

| don’t mean operating in the traditiona
sense, but, you know, as a sort of wal k around the
floors, and we had an opportunity to speak to people
ext enpor aneously to get their thoughts on how it was

working for a Prospect hospital. W spoke with doctors.
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MR, LAZARUS: Wen did you visit?

M5. DORIN. W visited |last May, May of
2015, and we visited the Charter CARE hospitals in June of
2015. June of 2015.

MR LAZARUS: Wen did PVMH first bring to
ECHN s attention the problens it had at the Southern
California hospital s?

M5. DORIN. That's on the tineline, and
that is in -- they called February 1st?

MR KARL: Yeah. [If | can answer?
February 1st, | was inforned by M. Reardon that they
have sone issues regardi ng i nspections at a coupl e of
hospitals out in LA

MR, LAZARUS: Ckay and that’s the tineline
that we're going to be getting as a late file?

MR KARL: Yes.

M5. DORI N Yes.

MR, LAZARUS: Thank you.

M5. MARTONE: Ms. Dorin, Kim Mrtone,
OHCA. Wuld it be possible to provide any records or
reports, findings fromthe quality evaluation teanf? 1Is
t here anything generated fromthat? That woul d be
appr eci at ed.

M5. DORIN: Sure. Sure.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Ckay. That wl|
be Late File No. 5.

MR LAZARUS: Ms. Dorin, you had nentioned
a collaboration by the eastern region hospitals on the
quality issues in your testinony. Can you el aborate on
the structure of the structure, and who will conprise --
who will this collaboration team-- what would it be
conprised of, what individuals?

M5. DORIN. | would say that that is
probably to be determned at this point, but, as we have
been tal king with Prospect and as our quality team had
visited wwth the Charter CARE hospitals in Rhode |sland,
we saw great opportunities to further coll aborate and
share best practices, and Prospect is commtted to doing
that, as | believe Von referenced and Tom al so.

MR LAZARUS: Al right.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Maybe, just for
the benefit of the public here, could you just go through
and sunmarize the tineline that you re going to submt to
t he panel ?

M5. DORIN. Well it’s six pages.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: kay.

M5. DORIN. 1'd be glad to.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: |’ m sorry?
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DR ONEILL: It’s sort of a blow by-bl ow
timeline of what we did once we knew about the IJ issues
at Prospect and everything that we did internally with
our managenent team and the Board.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: kay.

MR KARL: 1’Il just walk you through a
couple of points, if that would be hel pful

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: That woul d be
hel pful, and, for the public that’'s here, this docunent
will be on OHCA's website if you want to review it in
detail .

MR. KARL: So |I'mgoing to condense when
we first heard about it, because what we needed to do,
again, internally is take a deep dive into the inspection
docunents.

There's a data roomthat was downl oaded to
us that has thousands of pages, and the quality team
junmped all over that.

|, then, on February 19th, | nmet with the
Board Chair, Dr. ONeill, and Vice Chair, Joy Dorin, to
di scuss the or disclose the regulatory issues in
Cal i forni a.

Dr. ONeill stated that he felt it would

need to be brought forward to the Board of Trustees.
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There was a neeting with the Board of Trustees on the
25t h of February.

The Board of Trustees, at that point,
brought forward and appointed a subcommttee of the
Transaction Commttee, led by Joy Dorin, the Vice Chair,
because she was al so the Chair of the Transaction
Conmi ttee.

We brought in our Q experts and, also,
our attorneys. They went through a significant due
di I i1 gence process. On March 2nd, we had detail ed phone
conversations wth those individuals fromPVH, Von and so
on and so forth.

W then also did a deep dive into, you
know, is there any concern, as it relates to any of the
equity partners, you know, sonmething |ike this would
occur, and we al so | ooked at that.

Then, on March 4th, our quality team went
up to Rhode Island, Qur Lady of Fatinma and Roger
Wllianms, did a detailed deep dive into their quality
program and, when they canme back, they were extrenely
inpressed wth the additional resources that were brought
forward at CharterCARE that we felt could hel p bol ster
some of our quality prograns in Connecticut.

They, of course, were very interested in
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HRO, because the Connecticut Hospital Association is
contracting wth the Rhode |Island Hospital Association to
roll out the HROinitiative.

We, then, again went through detailed
nmeetings tw ce week, Board nenbers, the Transaction
Commttee with Prospect. W reviewed all of the
i nspections. Also, the inmedi ate jeopardy, did sone
conpari sons about how regul ators do inspections out in
California versus what happens in Rhode |sland and
Connecti cut.

We, then, had a special Board neeting on
the 23rd to discuss all of our findings, this is March
23rd, and we felt that our concerns were satisfactorily
answered. We created that side letter that obviously is
an exhibit, and we wll continue to followup wth,
obvi ously, the responses to the findings.

This is going to be prolonged. This isn't
sonmething that CM5 is going to cone down and say, okay,
it’s all over with. [It’s going to be prolonged for a
while, so we had agreed to stay very close to that.

The side letter, you know, | guess | would
say this. W feel very strongly about our quality
program (Qbviously, we received awards. Connecticut has

a different handle on quality than sone of the other
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st at es.

The issue that | think we’'re dealing with
here, as we created this side letter, we wanted sone type
of witten commtnent from Prospect that they’ re not
going to junp in and nmess with our quality program and
t he two-year period was, you know, Joy said she wanted
five years, and, you know, a lot of other people said,
you know, two years, three years, and, again, it’s not
really the timng period.

It’s a matter of we thought two years
woul d be enough tine for the Chief Quality Oficer at
corporate to get her feet wet, to take care of the issues
t hat happen out in California, to better understand
regul atory issues, as it relates to the Texas hospitals,

t he Rhode Island hospitals, the Connecticut hospitals,
and, also, then, form as they do now for a | ot of other
scorecards for perfornmance neasures, to then have,

whet her it’s weekly or biweekly, calls between all of the
quality |l eaders to do sone conparisons and, also, to

mat ch outcones to see who is doing best practices and so
on and so forth, so that’s kind of it in a nutshell

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: (kay, thank you.

MR SALTON: Can | ask a follow up

gquestion on the remt? Maybe just take a mnute on that?
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The first provision provides they' re going
to maintain your prograns for two years, the second
provi sion tal ks about maintaining the QA program
Consi stent with best practices in the prograns in Rhode
| sland, which one wll govern if there’'s any consistency?

MR. KARL: That's a great question. |If
we're followng -- nuch of this is, obviously, the
f ederal HCAHPS CMS, HCAHPS.

Those that pertain to Connecti cut
obviously will be followi ng ours. Those that pertain
separately to Rhode Island will follow by the Rhode
| sl and hospitals.

| would say this, because this is, again,
this is brand new, so speaking just fromny |ips, we have
to forman eastern region quality program and not
necessarily even an eastern region. It really has to be
a Connecticut and a Rhode Island, so we better understand
quality services, so we can do sone | ocal conparisons
versus nation conpari sons.

DR LEW Henry, if | could just add, you
know, from corporate, if what is happening in
Connecticut, as you say, if there’s not a neeting of the
mnds, if it’s working, we don’'t want to cone and ness

wthit.
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We're certainly here to support everything
that they' re doing, and, as we fix our issues in
California and our Chief Quality Oficer gets on board
and real ly understands extrenely well what’s happeni ng
across segnents, you know, |I’msure she’'ll be able to
of fer sone input and support, but whether we’re talking
about quality, or business devel opnent, or recruitnent,
or staffing, we defer to the |local |eadership, and if
it’s working, there’s no reason for us to fix it.

MR SALTON: kay. The agreenent al so
provi des there’s an acknow edgenent by Prospect that,
following the closing, the | ocal Board, | assune that’s
t he Advisory Board, will have oversight over the quality
assurance program

By oversight, does that nean that they
have actual del egated authority, or they re just going to
be reviewing it and reporting in an advisory way? |’'m
not sure what oversi ght neans.

From a regul atory perspective, oversight
means one thing. From an advisory concept, it neans
sonet hi ng el se.

MR CROCKETT: Del egat ed.

MR SALTON: Would you el aborate on it for

the record?

POST REPORTI NG SERVI CE
HAMDEN, CT (800) 262-4102



© 00 N o o -~ wWw N Pk

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N PP O O 00 N O O B W N +—» O©O

109

HEARI NG RE: ECHN AND PIVH
MARCH 29, 2016

MR, CROCKETT: Yeah, so, the way that we
have reached the agreenent is that, obviously, the
corporate Board has ultimate responsibility for the
financial and quality of any organization, and, with
that, there are going to be a del egation of physician
credentialing, as well as the quality programto the
| ocal Advisory Board.

The | ocal Advisory Board will be nade up
of physicians within ECHN, as wel|l as sone conmunity
menbers associated with that.

MR, SALTON: Have you done a del egation
like this in the other hospital s?

MR CROCKETT: W do, at Charter CARE

MR SALTON. Coul d you give us a copy of
t hat del egation, so we can see that if that’s the nodel ?

MR. CROCKETT: | believe, yeah. | think
we can.

MR SALTON:  Ckay.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: That w Il be
Late File No. 6.

MR SALTON: That’'s all | have right now.
Thank you.

MR LAZARUS: |[|’'Ill address the next couple

of questions towards ECHN. It’s nentioned in the
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responses to the pre-hearing questions that ECHN
reviewers visited PVWH s Rhode |sland hospitals as part of
its quality review investigation and found that the

qual ity prograns had been enhanced in notable ways since
Prospect’s acqui sition.

Can you el aborate a little bit on that and
provi de sonme exanpl es?

MR. KARL: | can. Again, I’'mgoing to ask
Linda Quirici to conme up, please. She was the one, who
headed up the inspection.

M5. QURICI: So this is for the Rhode
| sl and hospitals, correct?

MR LAZARUS. Yes.

M5. QURCl: Ckay, so, nyself and two
experts cane with me on March 4th. W visited both
hospitals, which is Roger WIllians and Qur Lady of
Fatima, and we net with the Quality, Safety and Ri sk
Departnents and Infection Control, so those are the areas
that we concentrated on in both hospitals.

So sone of the enhancenents that we saw
that we were quite excited about, to be honest with you,
is PVH brought safe transitions of care, which has
significantly reduced their readm ssion rates.

Phar maci sts and an LPN were brought on board for follow
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up calls, and they saw a significant decrease in their
readm ssion rates, and that’s sonething that al
hospitals are | ooking at for the betternent of the
patient, as well as that’s sonething that CV5S | ooks at,
so we really were interested in that.

They are integrating the two hospitals,
el imnating duplication of services, which is nmuch nore
efficient, so that was great.

W saw a huge investnent in the renovation
of the two hospitals with the patient in mnd. They were
inproving all their handi cap access. |In places where
they had stairs, they were now putting handi cap access
and elevators to help with handicap, so that it was with
the patient in m nd.

They inproved lighting. They had single
roons, which is nuch preferred by patients, open concept
nursing units, which is definitely best practice for
patient care, and they had plans for future renovation
there, as well, |ooking for new energency departnents,
etcetera, so we saw physically a |lot of construction
going on, a lot of inprovenents in both hospitals, so
that’s great, and that would be a great help to us, as
wel | .

So they’' ve integrated sone of their
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departnents. They have a very robust quality departnent.
They’ ve supported new positions to ensure that the
quality standards and netrics are net.

PMH recogni zed Roger Wl lians focused on
quality and safety and supported that process that was
already in place, which is what they’'re planning on doing
for us, as well, and they increased their staffing and
patient satisfaction area, which is great to hear, as
wel |, because that is, you know, patient experience,
patient satisfaction is very inportant. |It’s sonething
t hat Eastern Connecticut Health Network is working on,
so, again, we're |looking for simlar kinds of
i nprovenents here.

Let’s see. W did see their quality
i nprovenent di agram which was very good, how they report
up to the Board, which that was great, and, in speaking
with the Chief Nursing Oficers at both hospitals, PM
al  oned autonony in managi ng the departnents that are
nmeeting their performance neasure, so if they're doing it
right, you know, they’'re encouraging that, and those
departnents that are not neeting expectations are
assisted by this corporate oversight that they ve tal ked
about, so that’s kind of the best of both worlds.

PMH assisted the hospitals in pursuit of
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certifications, things, such as stroke, diabetes and
total joint replacenent. They have a good outreach for
primary care doctors and started an | PA there, which has
been very hel pful.

They were in the process of devel oping the
various VP positions for oversight of the PVH systens, so
that was in place, and this is the |ocal |eadership
talking to us about that. It wasn't PVMH It was the
| ocal | eadership talking to us about that.

Ckay. They provided tools to assist with
staffing and productivity, so to nmake sure that they were
efficient, and that was great. They | ook at processes,
PMH | ooks at processes through evidence-based standards.
They anal yze cost and outconmes to choose the best
pat hway, which is best practice, and that’s sonething
that we woul d want to do.

They support a nulti-disciplinary review
of any events, which is great. They had strong | egal
support, which the hospitals felt was very hel pful. They
i nproved processes in recycling and reprocessing with the
support from PVH.

I nfection control, there was no cutting
corners in infection control, and that was really great

for nme to hear, because as PMH is putting it nunber one,
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really that’s sonething nunber one in our organization,
as well, and that’s in our safety plan, | mean our
quality plan for 2016.

So they had a very robust Infection
Control Department. Again, fully staffed at both, and I
| ooked at all the job descriptions, and they tal ked about
their processes. Very solid. Very solid. Sonething
that, again, we'll want to talk with them nore about as
we go forward.

kay. The other thing is they provided
their metrics display and organi zed dashboard. There was
really great dashboard fromthese two hospitals that
| ooked at all their quality neasures and put their
targets, you know, what their benchmarks are and what
their scores were, so you could very clearly see it was
very organi zed on an Excel spreadsheet, and we’'re, again,
hoping to emulate that, so we had a great visit.

MR, LAZARUS: Thank you. As part of the
qual ity assurance commtnent, are these sone of the
recomendations you' re | ooking to inplenent say in the
next two years at ECHN?

M5. QURC: Wll, as part of that, and I
think it talked about it, that these things will be

avail able to us, we’'ll communicate wth them you know,
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as we have done, and their best practices we' |l adopt
those, and they’ || adopt our best practices, so, again,
t he best of both worlds to share between the hospitals.

MR. LAZARUS: Al right, thank you

M5. QUR Cl: Ckay.

MR. LAZARUS: As a result of ECHN s
investigation into the conpliance and quality issues
connected with PMH s California hospitals, did ECHN
consi der asking PWVH whether its | ocal Advisory Board
could have authority than presently where it would only
recomrend authority to ensure ongoing quality care to
ECHN hospitals? Wuld you like ne to repeat the
guesti on?

MR KARL: Wuld you pl ease repeat that?

MR. LAZARUS: Yeah. As a result of ECHN s
investigation into the conpliance and quality issues
connected with PMH s California hospitals, did it
consi der asking PVH whether its | ocal Advisory Board
could have nore authority than presently to ensure
ongoing quality of care at ECHN hospital s?

DR. O NEILL: W didn’t consider that,
specifically, as you ve phrased it, but what | think --
see, we tried to consider howthis is going to work out

practically speaking, and, right now, our Board, the
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Board of ECHN, has a ot of input into the quality
standards that the organi zation has.

In the future, the Advisory Board is going
to have a simlar practical role. In other words, the
Advi sory Board consists of physicians and conmunity
menbers. One of their main roles is to oversee quality
and patient safety, so if Prospect is reassuring us that
our quality programw || be supported, then it wll be
i npl enented through the interaction between the Advisory
Board and the managenent team

So when the Board | ooked at it, you know,
over the past four nonths, or four weeks, ever since this
started, we felt that we had the assurances that we
needed to nmake sure that we were going to naintain
quality for the next five years, let’s say. D d you want
to add sonet hi ng?

M5. DORIN. And beyond, because the
commtnent letter, you know, does -- oh, okay. R ght.

So the local Board, the responsibilities the |ocal Board
are actually enunerated in the asset purchase agreenent,
and it says, and I’'mreading frompage 63, “The |oca
Board shall, anong other things, serve as a resource for
buyer with respect to buyer’s investnent of the capital

comm tnent, mai ntenance and i npl enentati on of the
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strategi c business plan, and be responsi ble for nedical
staff credentialing at the hospitals, maintain and
oversee the quality assurance prograns at the hospitals,
and oversee and nmanage the accreditation process for the
hospital s.”

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: But | think what we’ve
just heard is that there’s a del egation of actua
authority to the local Board with respect to quality
i ssues, is that correct, beyond an advisory capacity?

MR, CROCKETT: | think | understand your
guestion, but I’mnot exactly for sure.

A MALE VOCE: Do you want to restate it?

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN:  Yeah

A MALE VO CE: Maybe say it another way?

MR ZINN ROMHORN: | think we’ve heard a
little bit about just now about what the asset purchase
agreenent tal ks about with respect to the Advisory
Board's authority. Subsequent to that, we have the side
| etter agreenent, and your answer, M. Crockett, to
Attorney Salton’s question, which was that there is a
del egation of authority on quality issues or will be to
the |l ocal hospitals, simlar to what’s done in Rhode
Island, is that correct? And that’'s a del egation, not

just advisory authority, as contenplated in the asset
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agreenent, but actually authority.
M5. VOLPE: | think M. Crockett testified
that, for physician credentialing, there's certainly a

del egation of authority.

MR ZINN ROMHORN: | think it was beyond
t hat .

MR CROCKETT: Well, for the two-year
period, | nean what we have commtted to is that we're

not going to be nodifying the program as setup
currently, and only |ooking to actually enhance it.

MR. ZI NN ROMHORN: (Okay. W had a
colloquy a few m nutes ago about what paragraph two in
the side letter means when it refers to | ocal Boards
havi ng oversi ght over the quality assurance program and
what oversight neans in that context, which was as the
answer when a del egation of authority.

MR SALTON: As opposed to nerely
oversight, and I think, when we spoke, | said there's
advi sory and there’s authority with oversight, and you
said, and I want to clarify this, because this is
i nportant, you’ re del egating actual authority for themto
have oversi ght, neani ng sonet hing cones up, and the |oca
Board says, wait a mnute, we don’'t want to be here, we

want to be over there, or are you saying this is just an
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advi ce, and t he managenent of the hospital, which you
guys will now have control over, wll decide whether to
follow that advice or is it actual authority over the
gqual ity assurance program not accreditation?

M5. MATTHEWS: |I'msorry. | nean if you
do l ook at the | anguage in here, it is serving as a |loca
resource with respect to the investnent in capital, of
the capital commtnent, but then it does end the
mai nt enance and i nplenentation, but then it’s actually
the local Board is to be responsible for nedical staff
credentialing and mai ntain and oversee quality assurance
progranms, so we read that as a real del egation of
authority on those nmatters, as opposed to serving as a
resource and advisory in connection with the spend on the
capi tal conmm tnent.

MR, CROCKETT: Actually, let ne read
t hrough the actual words.

MR ZINN ROMHORN: | just want to put on
the record, Attorney Matthews, you were readi ng from what
docunent ?

M5. MATTHEWS: |I'msorry. | was reading
fromthe asset purchase agreenent, Section 5.27 of the
asset purchase agreenent.

MR ZI NN ROMHORN:  Thank you
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MR CROCKETT: And, so, that’s now been
updated with a side letter, and | want to just read the
one sentence that actually speaks to | think what woul d
be termed a definition of delegation specific to this,
and it says that “Buyers shall not inplenent any
nodi fication to the seller of quality progranms w t hout
first obtaining the approval of the | ocal Board for such
nodi fi cations, which approval shall not be unreasonably
wi thheld.” That’s what we tried to do to actually define
t he del egati on.

MR SALTON. So that’'s distinct fromthe
end of the prior section, where it says, the end of
paragraph two -- do you have letter in front of you?

MR, CROCKETT: | do.

MR SALTON: “The |ocal Board shall have
oversight over the quality assurance program” so is that
-- we're trying to figure out how these things interplay,
if they do at all.

MR. CROCKETT: Well we’'re hoping that they
overlay each other, not in conflict, which is that the
| ocal Board shall have oversight of the program and the
poi nt of paragraph three was to clarify what the role of
t he oversight was, which is that Prospect cannot nake any

nodi fication to the program
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MR SALTON. kay, so, that’'s clear. |
understand there’s obviously a difference there, because,
in one instance, you could say status quo, we can’t
change status quo of the program as devel oped by the
hospitals, but then the local Board m ght want to go
beyond status quo and not really change it, but maybe
augnent it or do other kinds of things, decide that nore
resources are necessary, W thout changing the program
but that m ght be considered within the scope of
oversi ght, but what you ve clarified, at |east from your
under standi ng, and | hope that’s what the hospital’s
understanding is, also, is that, in fact, the oversight
nmerely neans what paragraph two provides, which is change
in the status quo, w thout approval of the | ocal Board.

MR. CROCKETT: That's our understandi ng.

DR. O NEILL: That’s our understanding

MR SALTON. Ckay.

MR, LAZARUS: The next questions actually
have to do with the topic of comunity needs health
assessment .

PMH states in the application that it wll
support and inplenent ECHN s community needs health
assessnent plans through 2016. Wat does that actually

mean by that? | believe that’s on page 2178.
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MR KARL: Dennis McConville wll respond
to that.

MR LAZARUS: Sure.

MR DENNIS McCONVI LLE: Steven, may | ask
you to pl ease repeat the question?

MR, LAZARUS: Sure. PMH states in the
application that it will support and inplenment ECHN s
comunity needs assessnent plans through 2016.

MR. McCONVI LLE: Yeah, so, filed with the
application were the highlights of our community health
needs assessnent plan that was conducted by ECHN, and we
continue to inplenent that plan and the prograns
associated with that plan, and Prospect has agreed to
support us in that ongoing effort, but, at the sane tine,
it’'s about tine for us to conduct a new community health
needs assessnent, and that is our plan, and we anticipate
t hat that be supported by PWH

MR LAZARUS: And PVMH is in support of
t hat ?

MR McCONVI LLE:  Yes.

MR LAZARUS:. Ckay.

MR, ZINN ROMHORN: Did we have that
answered from PVH? Was that your question?

MR LAZARUS. Yes. W can have PMH say
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it, get on the record. That would be even better.

MR. REARDON: This is Tom Reardon agai n.
Let me coment on this. Comunity needs assessnent, |
think as you phrase it, relates really to an IRS
requi renent for 501(c)3 corporations. In order to get
t ax- exenpt status, you need to go through a comunity
needs assessnent, anong ot her things, and, so, as a for-
profit, it doesn’'t apply to us, per se.

Having said that, we’ve agreed to go ahead
with the inplenentation of the community needs assessnent
t hrough 2016 and to conduct another conmunity needs
assessnent within the next two years.

Now, having said that, we are all about
| ooking at the community. Everything we do is focused on
| ooking at the community. W do that type of assessnent
internally constantly. W just don’t necessarily use an
outside consultant to help us in that regard.

| nmean think about it. Many of our
hospitals are safety net hospitals. W are constantly
| ooki ng at the needs of the comunity.

One of the speakers spoke about what we're
trying to do, in ternms of knitting together nental health
and physical health. That’s a huge, huge effort.

| mean, right now, if you take care of a
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person, who has a behavioral health problemand you fix
t heir physical health problemand you di scharge them and
they go under a bridge and do whatever they do, they're
going to be back in the hospital in 10 days or 10 weeks.

And, so, what we’'re trying to do is knit
together the two prograns, so that we have plenty of
resources that actually focus on those patients if
they’ re assigned to us as nenbers under popul ation
managenent, and we al so are out there trying to stitch
toget her with our CRC nodel resources, whether it’s
mental health resources in the community or even beds in
the conmmunity, as opposed to in a hospital.

So we’'re constantly focused on community
needs. It’s just | wanted to nake the distinction
bet ween community needs assessnent in the sense of a
501(c)3 and the community needs we all always are
assessing all the tine.

DR LEW So if | could just add on to
that, it's certainly necessary, as it relates to what’'s
required as a not-for-profit, but it’'s not sufficient for
us and that we need to do nore.

We need to |l ook at how we’'re actually
i nproving the access for the population and be able to

have patients flowinto our systemwth all the prograns
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that | tal ked about earlier.

So, yes, it’s part of our overall
strategy, but it’s not the only thing that we woul d need
to look at. It's part of it, but not the whole picture.

M5. MARTONE: Thank you for stating that.
That’s actually, as well, OHCA's mission, is to ensure
that residents of the state have inproved access,
enhanced access to health care service, so, wth that, we
do ask all hospitals to report and to participate in
t hese assessnents, report their findings, report their
i npl ementation plan, provide us sone tinmes w th updates
periodically, and, by law, we can’'t ask for the data that
really goes into the collection of that and having al
the hospitals in the state report and have, hopefully, at
one point, standardi zed.

We al so use that in our Certificate of
Need programin evaluating Certificate of Need
applications, |ooking for unnet need, underserved areas,
and maki ng sure services are provided to the community
there, so that is typically what we ask of the hospitals
inthis state.

MR LAZARUS: PMH, | think it was stated
in the application that it’s PMHs intention to invol ve

the local Board in the assessnent process, as well as
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facilitate public input, and that PMH will publicly
di ssem nate their community needs assessnent and its
i npl enentation strategy-w se website, as you nenti oned.

Wul d you involve the | ocal Boards for
bot h Manchester Menorial Hospital and Rockville General
Hospital ?

MR, REARDON:. Absolutely. Absolutely. W
rely on coomunity. Look, we desperately want to partner
with ECHN. We want to be here in Connecticut, but as
much as we want to be here, we’'ll never know the
comunity as well as the community nenbers, and, so, we
absolutely rely on and talk to the Boards in both
communities, as well as other community nenbers.

MR. LAZARUS: Al right, thank you

MR ZINN ROMHORN: Is it anticipated that
a community needs assessnent or sonmething in the nature
of a community needs assessnent will|l be undertaken, in
order to informthe decisions about how to spend down the
capital comm tnent?

MR. McCONVILLE: So the way we’ll go about
getting to the strategic capital plan is through a
strategi c planning process that will have several inputs.

It will have the results of the comunity

heal t h needs assessnent, which woul d i ncl ude both
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secondary data, that data that’s avail abl e t hrough
vari ous sources, and primary data, which is often nost
difficult to collect, which is directly from patients,
| earni ng about their health behaviors and lifestyles.

It would al so include input from an
envi ronnment al assessnent we would do relative to what'’s
happeni ng around our service area with regards to other
providers in the prograns that they have available to
residents of our comunities.

And, inportantly, it will also involve
input fromthe | PA Board. W now have this physician-I|ed
or gani zati on, physici an-governed organi zation that wll
be assessing the health care that’s delivered to our
pati ents.

They wi |l understand what the gaps in the
care are, what prograns are needed, what resources wll
need to be deployed to nake sure that our continuumis
conpl ete, conprehensive, and does the best possible job
of caring for the patients.

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: Thank you.

MR, LAZARUS: Wo woul d be on the | oca
Boards with the qualifications to determ ne public health
needs or disparities inpacting mnorities and underserved

popul ation, and howis this done in other PWH hospital
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communities? | guess it’s a two-part question

MR. KARL: So speaking for ECHN goi ng
forward, the nodel that Prospect Medical uses throughout,
as | understand, throughout the country that they wll
i npl emrent here, which we’'re very nmuch in favor of, is the
Board will be conprised of 10 nenbers, five conmmunity
menbers that are fromthe primary and secondary towns
that we currently serve wi th diverse backgrounds,
obviously to fit the current service area, and five
physi ci ans, i ndependent practicing physicians in the
surroundi ng areas.

Those physicians will have -- will be nade
up of different specialties, and they will, then, act and
take the | ead as the governing Board of the organization.
| will also be on that Board as the | eader

MR CROCKETT: And that setup is
consi stent of how we work in our other markets that we
nodel ed ECHN to be consistent.

MR LAZARUS:. The next set of questions
actually have to do with the community benefit. The
application nakes clear that PVMHis commtted to
continuing to treat patients, regardless of ability to
pay, and providing financial assistance to patients that

qualify, based on the need, in the sane manner ECHN by
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adopting their charity care policy.

s the commtnent conditioned or Iimted
in any way?

MR SPEES: It is not. Only subject to
any changes in |laws or regulations that would require a
change.

MR. LAZARUS: Thank you. PM has said
it’s spending on community vol unteer services and
community benefits will be devel oped, based on
confirmation or identification of conmmunities’ priority
needs.

In the application, ECHN describes that
the Maternity Care Center on the Rockville Genera
Hospital canpus that was just featured in the CHA
Community Benefits Report for the hospital as providing
free maternity services to uninsured and underi nsured
wonen in Vernon and surrounding towns. |Is this a program
t hat woul d conti nue?

MR KARL: Yes. That programw ||
continue. There's a significant comunity need on the
Rockvill e side for access purposes. Those individuals
are seen by rotating OBGYN physicians and Advanced
Practice Nurses.

Those patients nmany tines do not have
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primary care physicians or OBGYN physicians. Once those
patients are worked up, they are, then, when it’'s tine to
be delivered, they are, then, noved over to Manchester
Menorial Hospital for delivery and foll ow up

MR LAZARUS: Ckay, now, sone of the other
progranms, such as the Manchester Menorial Famly
Devel opnent Center prograns, are funded either through
the state or federal grants, and, you know, they're
featured in the community benefits report.

Has ECHN explored the ability to keep
these prograns funded if the hospitals are converted to
for-profit?

MR KARL: Yes. W'’ve taken a deep dive
in that area, and there are -- nost of them can nove
across, even though it is a for-profit, because these are
fully grant funded.

There are sone that cannot. Those grants
may not be kept whole. That subsidy will be, then
covered by PVMH as they cone into the community.

| was just corrected, that we were now
informed that all are transferrable. That wasn't the
case two weeks ago.

MR LAZARUS: How long will the process of

eval uating the community benefits programw || continue
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to support, continue the support? Wat will be the
finished products, | suppose? Do you want ne to repeat
t he question?

How long will the process of evaluating
the conmmunity benefits program-- I'’msorry. It’s not
witten well here in ny notes.

MR. KARL: That’s okay.

MR LAZARUS: | think | edited it too
much. WIIl you be evaluating the community benefits
program and | ooking at all the different prograns that
you' re supporting withinit, and, if so, what’'s the
tineline for that to do that?

MR. KARL: Ckay, so, let ne answer that in
a couple parts. W wll be rolling out or beginning a
2016 community needs assessnent.

MR LAZARUS: Wen?

MR KARL: Imrediately after closing, so
we’'re hoping this gets approved, and, again, as M.
McConville nentioned, it’s quite in depth to construct
this community needs assessnent.

It’s not only the data that you receive,
but it’s actually phone calls and | ooking at the current
di sease states in the areas, what we’'ve seen clearly.

Just for an exanple is the preval ence of
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di abetes, vascul ar issues associated with that, and now,
as of late, that we’'re all struggling with, and |’ m sure
that it’s going to cone across, is the opiate issue that
we're dealing with

W just nost recently had a discussion --

MR LAZARUS: |'msorry, M. Karl. | was
specifically asking about the community benefit program
not the community needs assessnent.

MR KARL: Ch, okay. Sorry.

MR LAZARUS: |'msorry. | didn't want to
cut you off.

MR KARL: M error. It was getting
blinded in ny mnd, so | apologize for that. Prospect
has agreed to continue our community benefit prograns
goi ng forward.

MR. LAZARUS: And speaki ng of which, PM
has said they' re projecting to an increase in the
community building activities through 2019, based solely
on inflation, and it assumes no change in Medicaid
popul ati on served in the comunity, regarding the
comunity benefit programoffered at the hospitals. How
do we interpret the statenent?

M5. VOLPE: Do you have a bates stanp, as

to where that is in the application?
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MR LAZARUS. Yes. Page 3232.

3

KARL: Can we have a nonent just to
| ook that up?

MR, LAZARUS: Absol utely.

MR. KARL: Do you want to continue while
we’ re doi ng our homework, or would you like us to take a
br eak?

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Wy don’t you go
to the next question, then we can conme back?

MR LAZARUS: Well it sort of relates to
t he sane question, so we’ll take a nonent.

MR. SPEES: Sorry. Could you repeat the
guesti on?

MR LAZARUS:. Sure. Absolutely. PM has
said that it is projecting an increase in comunity
bui l ding activities through 2019, based solely on
inflation, and it assunmes no change in Mdicaid
popul ati on served or conplinent of the conmmunity benefit
programoffered at the hospitals, so we’'re trying to
understand what that statenent really says.

MR SPEES: Basically, it was just a
commtnent, in terns of continuing to fund the community
need, community benefit prograns at the historical |evels

with an inflation rate over tine.
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MR LAZARUS: And that was ny next
guestion that | was trying to get to. Thank you. The
next couple of questions actually have to do with the
underserved areas in primary care, so, on page 2188, ECHN
descri bes sonme of the safety net services provided in the
Rockvill e section of Vernon and the northwestern part of
Mansfield as establishing a fam |y nedicine practice in
Rockville and in Vernon. How |large are these practices?

MR. McCONVILLE: I'msorry. | mght have
to ask you to repeat the question. How large is the
practice in Vernon, in the Rockville section of Vernon?

MR, LAZARUS: Yeah.

MR. McCONVILLE: Okay. | would have to
provi de you with the actual nunbers of patients that are
managed t hrough that practice. | would have to get you
that information at a later date, but it is a mature
practi ce.

MR LAZARUS: W’re trying to get the
nunber of physicians in the practice.

MR McCONVILLE: Okay. There is a
physi ci an and an APRN.

MR. LAZARUS: Ckay, so, a single physician
and single APRN at the Vernon | ocation?

MR MCONVILLE: At the Rockville
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| ocati on.

MR. LAZARUS: At the Rockville |ocation.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: What about
Ver non?

MR LAZARUS: \Wat about the Mansfiel d?
Yeah, the Mansfield |ocation.

MR. McCONVILLE: W don’t have a | ocation
in Mansfiel d.

MR LAZARUS: Ch.

MR. McCONVI LLE: W have i ndependent
primary care physicians that practice at locations in
Vernon and Tol | and and Coventry, all of which draws sone
patients from Mansfi el d.

MR, LAZARUS: Al right, thank you. 1It’s
al so stated in the application that ECHN has inmaging | abs
in Tolland and presently no | ocati on changes are
proposed, although it is expected that ECHN anbul atory
network will be expanded and services configured to
pronote nost efficient delivery of care.

| f these are professional service areas
and PVH says it’s going to be aggressively recruiting
physi cians for these areas, would there be an increase in
staffing | evels at these | ocations?

MR McCONVI LLE: That would all depend on
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what the data shows. | nean, currently, we offer those
services through a conbi nation of services offered

t hrough the Tol Il and I magi ng Center, which is a joint
venture, through our |aboratory services, which are
affiliated, obviously, wth the hospitals, and then

t hrough sone i ndependent practices, physician practices,
whereas they have found nore demand for their services.

We have done what we can to help themwth
the recruitnent of additional providers. W wll do a
medi cal staffing plan. W’ re always | ooking at what the
need is for physicians in service areas, and then we go
about recruiting physicians to that plan.

MR LAZARUS: |s that one of ECHN s goal s,
to recruit additional physicians?

MR. McCONVILLE: We would Iike to have as
many physici ans associ ated wi th our Independent Practice
Associ ation as possible to get the very best coverage and
conpr ehensi ve coverage for the popul ation served by ECHN.

That is all to the benefit of the prograns
that will be avail abl e for popul ati on health.

MR. LAZARUS: How successful has ECHN been
inretaining residents and interns in its GVE program for
fam |y nedici ne?

MR MCONVI LLE: So of the first
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graduati ng class, which were four physicians, one of
t hose physicians is a nenber or an enpl oyee of our
Medi cal Foundation, and, for the current graduating
class, which has six third year residents, we have
recruited and signed up one of those graduates, as well,
so we're in the second year of having graduated cl asses
fromthe program
MR LAZARUS:. Ckay, thank you. | guess
this question is nore directed towards PVH  How did
Rhode Island primary care network grow to 105 from 18
when the Charter hospitals were acquired by PVH in 20147
DR LEW Steven, the 18 were enpl oyed
physi ci ans, and we’ve increased that to nearly 80
enpl oyed physicians. The over 100 that you're referring
to are the primary care physicians that are part of the
| PA, and the IPAis nmade up of and well over 300
physi ci ans, but sone of those are enployed and sone of
t hose are independent, but, basically, what we started
doing while we were going through the process of
conversion and getting the regul atory approvals is we
began to lay the ground work for our nodel, and what that
woul d entail is going to the state and establishing a
risk-taking entity to allowto take financial risk froma

heal th plan, and we’ve already done that in Connecticut.
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We al so get other necessary regul atory
licenses to act as third party admnistrators and do
utilization review.

W engage the health plans, because our
goal, again, is to nove froma volune fee-for-service
world to a val ue-based type of paynent with the health
pl ans.

And then the third conponent of buil ding
our nodel is to create the physician network, so we start
engagi ng the physicians well in advance of closing on a
hospital, because, you know, it really serves -- it tells
the community what we’'re about, it starts to align the
physicians with the hospital, and it gives us a head
start on buil ding the nodel.

And, fromthat, if | could just share what
we’ ve done in Rhode Island, is we took that nodel and
infrastructure that we built and taking a val ue-based
contract fromthe | arge payer in Rhode Island, and we
went to the Governor of the state of Rhode Island, and we
proposed a Medicaid pilot to deliver a coordinated care
to the Medicaid population in Rhode Island at a | ower
cost.

Rhode Island is simlar to Connecticut, in

that there’s a Medicaid spending problem and our

POST REPORTI NG SERVI CE
HAMDEN, CT (800) 262-4102



© 00 N o o -~ wWw N Pk

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N PP O O 00 N O O B W N +—» O

139
HEARI NG RE: ECHN AND PIVH
MARCH 29, 2016

proposal, which was approved, allowed the state or wll
allow the state a savings of $6 mllion a year, but, to
do all of these things and to work wth the payers and to
work with the governnent on these types of pilots, you’ ve
got to set the groundwork, and that’s identifying the
needs that you’ ve asked Dennis about in figuring out
where the gaps are in care, and then for us to go out in
the network and build relationships with the conmunity
clinics and the FQHCs, the Federally-Qualified Health
Centers, to nmake sure we have a very robust network to
take care of a population, if we were to enbark on a
Medi caid pilot.

MR. ZI NN ROMHORN: Steve, can | ask a
fol | ow up?

MR, LAZARUS: Go ahead.

MR. ZINN ROMHORN: Dr. Lew, howis the
Rhode |sland Medi caid operation structured? |Is that
pai d, based on a risk or value nodel by the state, so PWH
hospitals receive a certain anount of noney to, at their
risk, to treat a Medicaid popul ati on?

DR LEW W will eventually get there,
yes, but we’'re not quite there yet.

MR ZINN ROMHORN: CGot it. And just one

ot her question, if | mght, Steve.
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MR LAZARUS: Um hum

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: M apol ogies. The
doctors in the I PA, who are enployed, and those, who are
not enployed by the hospitals, but participating, do they
have equal access to the electronic nedical record system
to conmmunicate with the electronic nedical record systenf

DR LEW Yes. |If you' re part of the IPA
network, we interface with the physician EMR t he sane.
Certainly, if doctors are enpl oyed and sharing an office
on the sanme system it nmakes it a lot easier, but we've
figured out a way, through a |lot of years of experience
ininterfacing with hundreds of different EVMRs that are
bei ng used by physicians out there, so it really doesn’t
matter to us if it’s independent, or enployed, or EMR
differences in EMR systens. W treat themthe sane.

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: Thank you

MR LAZARUS: Dr. Lew, did you nention
that you have a risk-taking entity established in
Connecti cut al ready?

DR LEW Yes, we do.

MR, LAZARUS: Ckay.

MR. REARDON: If | can just add to that,
Mtchell? 1In addition to a risk-taking entity, which is

a preferred provider network, we’'ve also gotten a TPA
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license and a utilization reviewlicense.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: What is a TPA
i cense?

MR. REARDON: Third Party Adm nistrator.

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: How many |ives are
covered in your risk-based operation in California?

DR LEW Nearly 300, 000.

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: And from your
experience, is there a kind of quantum of |ives necessary
to successfully operate a risk-based systemin a
particul ar service area?

DR LEW No, Perry, there’s not a magic
nunber, but if they're in a tightly-nmanaged geographic
area, such as a Manchester and Rockville, Vernon, that
woul d be a | ot easier.

You know, certainly would love to start
off wwth a couple of few thousand seniors, maybe 5, 000,
10, 000 Medicaid recipients, and, you know, if we get
5,000, 10,000 commercial lives, that would be a great
start, but we certainly could build the capacity to
manage, as we do in certain pockets in Southern
California, Orange County, for exanple, 120,000 nenbers
under managenent .

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: Thank you. Thank you
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St eve.

MR LAZARUS: So the |essons you ve tal ked
about and | earned from Rhode Island, that’'s a nodel
you' re |l ooking to establish in Connecticut and,
specifically, at ECHN?

DR LEW Yes. Yes. So we would love to
support the enpl oyed physician nodel, because, if doctors
need the stability and they want to be enpl oyed, we want
to be available, and let’s Iine up those doctors now,
fill the pipeline, so when the deal closes, we can bring
theminto the famly, but, at the same tinme, we recognize
that there are a |ot of physicians that still want to
remai n i ndependent, and that’s fine with us, too.

So we have al ready worked on our contract
tenpl ates for the physicians within the IPA. W' ve
est abl i shed the Physician Leadership Board al ready, and,
as everything else we do, we wll rely on the |oca
physicians to go out and grow the network and to talk
about the virtues of coordi nated care.

And, as |’ve already stated, we’ve engaged
the health plans, and what’s really nice in the state of
Connecticut is that the payers recognize this mgration
to val ue-based paynents, and, so, we're getting a | ot of

traction there, and | think, once we get the network
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est abli shed and the health plans, a couple of health
pl ans on board and show the proof of the nodel here in
Connecticut, would love to entertain a Medicaid pilot
with the State, offer savings with better outcones.

MR, LAZARUS: Al right, thank you. The
Prospect provider group, the Connecticut ECHN, LLC that
you had nmentioned in the application and PMH s ot her
affiliated I PAs, are there any agreenents preventing
providers fromdirecting patients to providers outside
the I PA, out of the network providers?

DR LEW If a doctor is part of the |PA,
a primary care physician is part of the |IPA and they
want to refer the patient to a specialist, they would
need to refer the patient to an in-network specialist.
That’s just part of the contractual agreenent that we
have, and that’s what the health plan wants, al so.

MR LAZARUS:. Ckay.

MR. REARDON: But, of course, if | could
just add to that, even though there are specialists
within ECHN, there are also tertiary and quaternary
services that we’'ll need, and we sinply contract with
that for the network.

MR LAZARUS:. Ckay.

DR LEW So if there were services that
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coul d not be provided at one of the ECHN hospitals, we
woul d contract for those services at other facilities.

MR, LAZARUS: Thank you.

A FEMALE: VO CE: Excuse ne. |’mjust
wonderi ng when the community nmenbers are going to have
the time to ask questions. W’ve all been here three and
a half hours, and all | hear is discussion. | would be
interested in hearing what the community had to say.
Thank you.

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: Thank you, ma’am W
are also very interested in hearing what the community
menbers have to say, and we’'ll stay here as |late as we
need to stay here to hear whoever wants to be heard.

W appreci ate your patience. W
understand that this is a lot to listen to, but this is
an inportant part of our process.

W do invite you, if you do have a tine
constraint this evening, to submt a comment onli ne.
Every comment that we receive will be avail able online,
so | understand, | suppose, the frustration there, and we
do appreciate your patience.

MR, LAZARUS: How successful has PMH been
in securing contracts with major payers in |aunching the

| PAs, managing at-risk contracts and conplying with
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national commttee for quality assurance network advocacy
standards when you're still grow ng these physician
net wor ks?

DR LEW So as far as securing health
plan contracts? | think that was the first part of your
guesti on.

MR LAZARUS. Yes.

DR. LEW W have contracts with all the
maj or payers in California. |In Texas, we haven't been
around as long. W have probably three contracts and
wor ki ng on getting additional contracts.

Certainly, our relationships and
experience in California has helped us wwth the |arger,
nore national payers.

I n Rhode |sland, we are contracted with
the | argest payer in the state, which has about 70
percent of the market, and we are establishing additional
contracts for the Medicaid pilot or two MCOs, Managed
Care Organi zations, in the state. Here in Connecticut,
we’'re currently in conversations.

And t he second part of your question,

St even?
MR LAZARUS:. The | PA managi ng at-ri sk

contracts and conplying with the national conmttee for
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qual ity assurance.

DR LEW R ght, so, in terns of
conpliance, I'lIl refer back to one of the slides that |
showed earlier. The |argest Trade Association for
del egat ed nedi cal groups, CAPG California Association
Physi ci an Groups, has a standard, based on a | ot of NCQA
requi renents, and it’s a very rigid scoring system and
we’ ve reached the highest level, elite status, for four
years in arow, so | think, fromquality and conpliance,
we’ ve done a very good job over the | ast several years
and certainly always a focus of ours.

Excuse ne. There was another part of your
guestion? OCh, risk, managing ri sk.

MR, LAZARUS: Um hum

DR. LEW Managing risk is always a
chal | enge, but, again, we see the health plan and the
payers mgrating to putting nore risk onto the providers.

W’ ve got a | ot of experience doing it,
and | think we’'re very good at negoti ati ng good
contracts, fair contracts, but what it nmakes us do is
assure that care is admnistered and delivered in the
right place at the right tine.

When | spoke earlier about a |ot of the

prograns that we have for patients, taking care of them
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across the continuum what that does is it prevents
readm ssi ons and unnecessary adm ssions, and, so, we can
reduce the cost, because we're really doing a great job
of managi ng under financial risk.

MR. LAZARUS: Al right, thank you

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Before we
continue wth our questions, we’'re just going to take a
10- m nut e break.

(O f the record)

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: W' || get
started again. W’re back on the record. Thank you
all, for com ng back

As Perry nmentioned before the break, we're
going to cut to the public comment portion of tonight’s
hearing, and then we’ll go back to the questioning of the
Appl i cant s.

(Wher eupon, the public spoke.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: We wi I | conti nue
with OHCA s questioning. M. Lazarus?

MR. LAZARUS: Dr. Lew, you had testified
that the inplenentation of CRC invol ves rewardi ng
physi cians for positive quality outcones, not outputs, by
a shared savings, pay for performance standards and

benchmar ks, and that these incentives would provide
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effective and inproving quality outcones in PVH s ot her
mar ket s.

Can you descri be the benchmarks and
i ncentives you' ve referred to?

DR LEW Sure. So what are the
incentives that we lay out for physicians to ensure
quality? W create a report card for our physicians, and
there are certain quality neasures specifically on this
report card, ranging fromwhether a patient had their
screeni ng bl ood test, cholesterol, henogl obin Alc,
preventive neasures, nmanmograns, bone densitonetry,
proper nedication, refilling their nedications.

| nmean there’s a whole list of probably 35
di fferent neasures that we would | ook at, and we know
and, as proven through studies, is that, if a patient has
t hese neasures done, they’ re probably going to have
better health than those that don’'t have these things
f ol | owed.

And, so, what we do is we incentivize the
physician to performthese tests on their patients, and
it’s a financial incentive to make sure that they perform
t hese nmeasures, and we go even further. W support them

I’1l refer back to one of ny slides, when

| tal ked about our Quality Care Coordi nators. W have
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teans of people that will call the patients to rem nd
themto go see their doctor, to make sure they have these
preventive neasures, and will coordinate the appointnents
with the patient and the physician offices.

| f physicians’ offices are inundated and
they can’t accommodate, we actually setup within the
comunity what we call wellness clinics, so these are
nore convenient sites for patients to cone to, and, if we
need to, we provide transportation, and if they don’'t
have transportation, we will go to the hone. | talked
about our honebound program

So we take a lot of different steps to
ensure that the patients have the proper quality neasures
to take care of their health, and, yes, we incentivize
the physician to do it, but, a lot of tines, they don’t
have the resources within their office to provide it, so
we provide it for them and we give the doctors the bonus
anyways. It’'s just good relationshinp.

MR LAZARUS: Thank you.

MB. CARMEN COTTG  Hi . Carnmen Cotto, OHCA
staff. M questions are of a financial nature, so | wll
probably be directing ny questions to M. Al enan and M.
Spees.

My first question is please discuss PVH s
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future financial stability and ability to provide future
financi al support to the Connecticut hospitals it is
acquiring as it continues to nerge and acquire hospitals
in other markets that are in poor financial health, such
as the one nost recently in New Jersey that was in
bankr upt cy.

MR ALEMAN:  Well let nme speak
specifically, to the Connecticut transaction and the
heal th prospect froma financial standpoint.

W had approxi mately a conpound annua
grow h rate of about 25 percent year-over-year. |It’s
been driven through organic growh in our platform
facilities, as well as growth in our acquired facilities.

W work very closely wwth all acquisitions
in the transactions, up to the point of the close of the
transaction and post to ensure that the facilities are
operating efficiently, are cost effective, work very
closely with the teans froma program anal ysis and bring
all of our skill sets that Von and sone of the operators
can speak to in great detail on how we work with the
facility, so they' re efficient and cost effective, and,
also, in the analysis of prograns that ultimately the
comunity supports and, as Tom has stated, can grow

prograns once again.
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So every acquisition that we’'re taking a
| ook at, inclusive of the New Jersey transaction, wll be
maki ng a profit fromday one, earnings before profitable
earni ngs, where, when we started working them they were
not in opposition, so we have a denonstrated track record
of working with acquisitions up to the point of close to
i nproved performance and continue that performance post.

So, to get to your question, | think I’ve
denonstrated or discussed the historical growh of
Prospect. So we’ve taken a |look at all the acquisitions,
i ncluding Connecticut. W are confident in the growh
potential of these facilities, and | have the utnost
confidence that every commtnent that we have nade to
t hese transactions on specifically ECHN that we have the
financial wherewithal to carry through on those
comm t nent s.

M5. COTTO  Thank you. Wen we asked the
Applicants in reference to the funded sources for this
proposal, you indicated that, as of Septenber 30, 2015,
PWH had in excess of $110 million in funds avail able, and
that you al so indicated that PWVH generates over $7
mllion in free cash flow per nonth. |Is that still the
case, as of today, they $110 mllion funds avail abl e?

MR ALEMAN: Yeah. Funds avail able on
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hand currently are in excess of $65 mllion. By the tine
this transaction closes, | anticipate we wll be, once
again, close to the $100 m|lion nunber. What has
transpired during that period is the acquisition of East
Orange CGeneral Hospital, which is really the differentia
there, and, then, froma free cash flow standpoint, we're
actually in excess of $7 mllion, so that's what will
hel p grow our avail abl e cash up and through the point of
the close of this transaction.

MB. COITO  Ckay.

MR. ALEMAN. So no change in the cash
fl ow

M5. COTTO Now you al so provided the sane
answer for the proposal related to Waterbury, so could
you el aborate how you intend to support both proposals
with the same anmount of funds avail abl e?

MR ALEMAN. Sane answer applies. So,
once again, the growh of our capital on a nonth-in and
nont h- out basi s generating anywhere from about $10 to $15
mllion of free cash flow on a nonthly basis, with our
capital commtnents in place, if you were to take a | ook
at our Septenber 2015 just purely cash generated from
operations, it was in excess of $75 mllion.

Qur capital comm tnents through East
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Orange and the Connecticut facilities are under $40
mllion on an annual basis, and this is wthout any
further growmth in some of our recent acquisitions.

During this period, in the last let’'s cal
it 12 to 16 nonths, we’ ve opened up a couple of closed
facilities of which are now starting to generate cash
into our system as well as continued growth w thin our
Texas and Rhode Island facilities.

M5. COTTO And you al so indicated that
there was an additional $40 million available to a credit
line through Morgan Stanley. Wat is the status of that
| oan right now, and how nmuch do you have avail abl e there?
Is it still $40 mllion?

MR ALEMAN. It is $10 million. W took
out -- we tapped the revolver to help close the East
Orange transaction in New Jersey, but, once again,
anticipate, by the tine that we get to the close of this
transaction, there will be roughly about $30 mllion
avai l able in that revol ver

M5. COTTO Ckay. Do you have any ot her
funds avail abl e excl usive of Mdrgan Stanley? Any other
credit line that you wll be able to use as a funding
source for this proposal ?

MR ALEMAN: None are needed, but the

POST REPORTI NG SERVI CE
HAMDEN, CT (800) 262-4102



© 00 N o o -~ wWw N Pk

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N PP O O 00 N O O B W N +—» O

154
HEARI NG RE: ECHN AND PIVH
MARCH 29, 2016

answer is yes. W’'re fairly, when you take a | ook at
other for-profit systens, relatively lowy |evered on an
adj usted EBI TDA ki nd of net of cash, where it’s just a
little over two. On an EBI TDA, debt-to-EBITDA rati o,
we're just a little over three.

Sorme of the |arger systens there | everage
ratios are over six. | just nention this, that you
generally have a lot of capability. W’re fairly
conservative in the debt that we take on

Part of that is that, for whatever reason,
if we need to tap the credit markets, we can. W have
very active relationships with all of the investnent
banks, and that’s part of ny role and responsibility, to
mai ntai n those rel ati onshi ps.

M5. COTTO | have one nore question in
reference to the free cash flow Has it in the past or
wWill in the future PMH use this free cash flowthat’s
avai l abl e to pay any divi dends?

MR. ALEMAN. No. There are none
currently. W haven't paid a dividend to our private
equity group since 2012. None are currently pl anned
currently, and I do not anticipate any in the future.

M5. COITO | thought that it was a

paynent of $100 mllion.
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ALEMAN:  That was i n Novenber 2012.
COITQO That was '12?

2 5 3

ALEMAN:  Yes.

M5. COITO Thank you. As part of our
review, we requested that you provide to us supporting
docunentation related to the credit ratings, and the
information that you provided to us indicated that the
credit agencies have given PMH an upgrade on the credit
ratings, but that rating was based on all the things, on
expected i ncreases in revenue, EBITDA and cash flow as a
result of soon-to-be-acquired hospitals, including those
i n Connecti cut.

Can you pl ease el aborate on financi al
gains for PMH's -- this proposal ?

MR. ALEMAN: |'mnot sure if understand
your question, but let ne try and answer, and you can
tell me if | address it or not.

MB. COITO  Ckay.

MR ALEMAN. Wth the credit agencies,
specifically, Mody’'s and S & P, | have neetings with
themon a quarterly basis.

Part of their -- two of their concerns
W th Prospect historically have been, A, concentration in

California, so they have | ooked for us to devel op and
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expand our nodel outside of California, and then, with
the acquisitions of NNx in San Antoni o, Texas and
Charter CARE i n Rhode Island, how did we performon those
transactions? |It’s easy to go off and you can acquire
and bring in the revenue to your system but do you
actually perforn? Do you actually work to turn those
facilities around and integrate your nodel into those
facilities?

So, through this last credit upgrade by
Moody’s and S & P, what they focused on was the
integration of Charter CARE and the inprovenent and
financial performance at Charter CARE, so | think what
you' re referencing is, as we | ook to expand our nodel
into other states, one of their areas of focus is will we
continue to be successful in our integration of those
facilities and the integration of our nodel to
denonstrate the inprovenent in financial and operationa
performance, like we did in CharterCARE, at the other,
you know, in other acquisitions.

That’ s going to be a continued focus of
theirs in Connecticut, New Jersey, and Pennsylvani a, as
wel | .

M. COITO  Ckay, thank you. M next

guestion is also related to the credit ratings report.
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They also -- the credit rating agencies al so expressed
some concerns on PMH s ability to achi eve sustained
revenue growth, due to the exposure to the California
Quality Assurance progranmis timng, cash flow timng.

Pl ease di scuss whet her the fees,
rei nbursenent tinmeline will hinder PVMH s ability to
provi de cash to ECHN to support any future cash
shortfalls related to the capital conmmunity.

MR. ALEMAN. The current programin
California is in place through Decenber 2016. There is
already -- the process is already in notion to extend
t hat program t hrough 2019.

Where their coment cones fromis there
are certain facilities that get very large dollars from
that program and their cash flowis solely dependent on
t hat .

There have been delays in the programin
t he past when they go into place. Prospect is
significantly less affected than other systens in
California, due to our diverse nodel, and, specifically,
t he nmedi cal group segnent, which is based in California,
continues to see strong cash flow fromthat segnent, and
it’s not just on the hospital side, as well as continued

strong cash flow fromour Texas facilities, Rhode Island
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facilities, and, once again, this gets to concentration.

| f you can diversify yourself from purely
those hospitals and systens that depend on that cash
flow, obviously, then, you re less affected by any del ays
in paynents. W’re about as diversified, | think, as any
health systemthere is, not only since a key conponent of
our conpany is the nedical group side, but as well as the
hospital services side.

Medi cal group side makes up roughly about
28 percent of our revenue and, obviously, cash flow that
comes fromit.

M5. COITO In reference to the capital
projects plan, can you provide us with the tineline for
t hat ?

MR SPEES: Well, as | nentioned earlier,
so the commtnent that we have wi thin the purchase
agreenent is to fund or commt to fund within five years
of the closing. W’'re obviously not going to wait until,
you know, year four and a half to deploy that capital, so
what we’'re really -- what we’'re doing once we cl ose the
transaction is imediately start the strategi c planning
and capital planning process, and, so, we'll begin to
| ayout and identify the projects that we want to invest

the capital in, and, so, that wll happen relative
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qui ckly after closing.

There will be sonme projects that have been
noted as critical and will be invested fairly quickly
after the closing, and then the remainder will be the
result of this planning process.

M5. COTTO Do you have a list of those
projects that you deemcritical, that you know al ready
that are deened critical?

MR. SPEES: W included several of the
itenms that were at |east being considered as part of the
CON application.

M5. COTTO Those are the ones that we
al ready have. W already have those, yes.

What is the status of PWVMH s plans to
attract a capital investnent partner?

MR, ALEMAN. There is no active process
currently going on right now.

M5. COTTO Ckay. | have one nore
guestion, and it’s for M. Karl, and ny question is
related to the audited financial statenents.

W would just like you to explain what is
meant by the follow ng statenment, and |’ mgoing to read
it to you. It’s note one of the audited financia

statenents.
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It states, “As of Septenber 30, 2015,
managenent has not finalized the purchase agreenent, and
the trustees believe that the network will continue with
its nornmal operation and as a goi ng concern for the
foreseeable future.” Wat did you nean with that
st at ement ?

MR KARL: Mochael Veillette will respond.
He's the Systens CEQ, CFO

MB. COITO  Ckay.

MR. M CHAEL VEILLETTE: So, Carnen, could
you just do ne a favor and just repeat the question? |
did hear it, but I just want to --

M5. COTTO Sure. W just want you to
expl ain what this means, what you meant under note one in
the audited financial statenents. The statenent reads as
fol | ows.

“As of Septenber 30, 2015, managenent has
not finalized a purchase agreenent, and the trustees
believe that the network will continue with its nornal
operation as a going concern.”

MR VEILLETTE: Ckay, so, we had actually
the same comment in the prior year financial statenents,
so, in essence, fromthe auditor perspective, nothing has

really changed, in terns of how close we are to having a
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deal finalized at the tine the audit was concl uded.

The APA has not yet been signed, and
because in just a general climate in the State of
Connecti cut what happened the year before, they viewthe
condition and the circunstances as neeting the definition
of a goi ng concern.

MB. COITO  Ckay.

MR VEILLETTE: | nean, if you look at the
financial performance of ECHN over the last five years,
as M. Karl presented earlier in the afternoon, you can
see the continued deterioration of the bal ance sheet and
the continued struggle to performto generate a profit
from operations, fromcore operations, so that, in
essence, defines our situation as being considered a
goi ng concern.

M5. COITO Wiat are you doing right now,
aside fromthis proposal, to address this, or are you
relying on this proposal ?

MR VEILLETTE: Absolutely relying on this
deal to be conpleted. There's no doubt about that. Are
we sitting on our hands as stewards of the organization?
No.

We're working on a nunber of initiatives

that you woul d expect to be going through, in terns of
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just, as M. Karl, again, referred to earlier,
productivity efficiency, |ooking at our |abor
opportunity.

W’ ve worked very aggressively | woul d say
in a ninble fashion since the fiscal year began, and we
have been -- and we're not the only hospital in the
state, but |ooking at what we had facing, comng into
2016, having sone significant news roll out about 12 days
prior to the beginning of the fiscal year with the
potential recision of all supplenental paynents, after we
had al ready put our operating budget before our finance
and our Board in Septenber, we then had to go back, you
know, to the drawi ng board, so to speak, and conme up with
at | east one or two other budgets for 2016, with an eye
on hopefully, you know, if we had to get through the
year, that perhaps we could still get through the year
and maybe not trip a bond covenant, okay?

But as you' re probably famliar, there’s
been a ot of fluidity in the current year with regard to
suppl enent al paynents and whether we’d be receiving them
or not, so our challenges continue to be very, very
extraordinary. Nothing has really changed fromthat, but
| assure you we’re doing everything possible that we can

to continue to operate, as you woul d expect, but the
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condition is quite dire.

If you look at the |last five years, our
cumul ative profit fromoperations over that five-year
windowis $7 mllion, and that is with considering sone
one-tine itens in there that | wouldn’t consider part of
core operations, so you |look at that five-year w ndow,
and that five-year window isn't going to inprove

| f anything, it’s becone a little bit even
darker out there for us, considering the cutbacks. |
understand there’'s been sone news today of maybe partia
restoration of the restorations, but that’s not going to
make our outcone any --

Look at our capital, what we're putting in
and what we’'re spending on capital in these |ast five
years. It’s not enough. W’re not able to -- our free
cash flowis very, very neager, and we're getting to the
poi nt right now where we are concerned about actually
being -- not generating free cash flow Does that?

M5. COTTO  Yes, it does. Ckay.

M5. MARTONE: | just have one question
The four individuals, who are hired and being hired
basically to be the nmanagenent team in terns of quality
assurance, are they available to cone to any of these

hearings at all, so we could kind of ask them as a
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panel, in ternms of, you know, what their plans are, in
terns of addressing these deficiencies or confirmng that
there will be no quality of care concerns at our
Connecticut hospitals, nmaybe to share sone of their
experiences if they' ve dealt wth any of these types of

I ssues?

Qobvi ously, you can see that our concern at
OHCA, and I'Il speak for CHCA, is that there are serious
deficiencies, and we just want to nmake sure that our
Connecticut hospitals maintain the high quality that they
have been providing, so I’mjust wondering if that’s even
a thought or possibility.

MR CROCKETT: | think it may be --
obviously, | wouldn’'t be able to get himhere for
tonorrow s hearing. W could figure out what needs to be
done.

M5. MARTONE: Ckay. |'d appreciate if you
can get back to nme on that, because, you know, | think
they’'re the ones that could answer if they truly have the
capacity to be able to do this, especially when they' re
overseei ng, what, 14 hospital s?

MR. CROCKETT: The corporate teamactually
will be supplenmented by -- it won't be just four people.

The four people that I've identified are going to have
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what | consider to be | eadership responsibility.

MB. MARTONE: Right.

MR, CROCKETT: There will be peopl e,
addi ti onal people within the corporate structure to
assist them | anticipate we wll have a regiona
Director of Quality for the east coast, a regional
Director for Quality on the west coast, and then support
team underneath them which will include what | call a
survey readi ness teamfor the organizations, and there
wi |l be several people on that, as well.

The four people | identified are just the
four, is the | eadership of the quality, not just the
entire team

M5. MARTONE: Ckay. They're the ones that
are accountabl e, though, for it? That’'s what we're
trying to get.

MR CROCKETT: Right.

M5. MARTONE: Is it the corporate |evel?
Is this tean? Wo can provi de us sone assurances?

MR CROCKETT: Well it will be the new
individual, as | said, starts on Monday that will have
the overall responsibility.

M5. MARTONE: Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Thank you, all
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At this point, CHCA has concluded with its questions, so
[l turn it over to the Ofice of the Attorney Cenera
for its questions.

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: Thank you, Kevin. W
do have sone questions, each of us, and OHCA s questions
have been conprehensi ve and touched on subjects,
obviously, that are of interest to us, as well, so we
will attenpt to be brief in our questions.

| do want to give you the opportunity, and
we would be interested to hear your response to sone of
the public commentary we received tonight, and not to
each one, but there were sone common thenes in those
statenents having to do with beyond the Advisory Board
anticipated in the transaction whether and how the
hospital systemw || continue to engage the community,

t he broader community or communities served, and serve
and engage individual patients within the hospital.

|"d be grateful to hear any thoughts that
you have on those thenes that we heard. 1’1l take it
fromanyone. M. Karl, perhaps?

MR. KARL: Sure. So everyone's opinion is
heard quite clearly. | have to always take a step back
and think about the 300 corporators that we have that

represent the communities that we currently serve.
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The corporators elect the Board of
Trustees. The corporators fill the current existing
commttees that are in place. The corporators, then
that are on commttees then graduate to the Board of
Trustees, and this is cyclical, so we’'re turning our
Board of Trustees over on a regul ar basis.

Personally, | find it interesting, when
community nenbers feel as though they' re not being
properly heard, because the 300 corporators truly are
breathing, living in this community, and, as we go
forward, the nechanisns that | see that would be kept in
place is a rotating group of |ocal Board nenbers, | ocal
community nmenbers that those five individuals that are on
the Board representing the community will continue, and
they will have two and three-year terns, so they will be
rotating off while new nenbers, then, rotate back on, so
we wi |l have new nenbers comng on to the Board of
Tr ust ees.

In fact, two of the existing Board nenbers
wi ||l have two-year terns, and three of the Board nenbers
that we'd like to bring on, again, fromour corporators
will be brand new to the organi zation, so we are, at
| east fromwhere | sit, I"'mgoing to have to pass it over

to the new owners, we are very open to hearing other
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options that may be out there.

| did hear some concerns. W're very open
to having other people that are interested in
participating on the |ocal Board of Trustees to cone in
and neet with the current Board, neet with corporators,
meet with nyself, and bring that forward

That’s what we do as a community
or gani zati on.

DR LEW Perry, | would just add that,
you know, with our nodel, because there are so nmany
touches that we make to patients, | tal ked about the
honmebound program and our Quality Care Coordi nators that
reach out and they call patients, there' s plenty of
opportunity for the conmunity and patients to give
feedback as they' re receiving care, and we take those
very seriously, because patient satisfaction is the
reason why we’'re able to grow, because patients tel
their friends to sign up wth this network, because
you're going to get great care.

So while we don’t have a formal commttee,
if you wll, that patients serve on, or nenbers of the
community serve on, because of the multiple touches
W thin our nodel that patients receive, there’'s plenty of

opportunity for feedback
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MR ZINN ROMHORN: Geat. Well |
appreciate that. | think one of the blessings of running
community hospitals for as long as you have is that there
is a sense of engagenent and expectati on of engagenent
that arises over tine, a proprietary sense, in effect,
over the direction of the hospitals and the conmunities.

|"mglad to hear that that’s been
recogni zed as an inportant value to recogni ze going
forward. 1’d encourage you to think about that as you go
forward with this transaction and share with us as we go
any thoughts you have about what’s worked to this point
and how to preserve that, what’'s worked in your
experiences in your other hospitals, as far as engagi ng
the communities that they serve and the direction of the
hospital as you go forward, so | appreciate that, those
answers, and I’'ll turn it over to Henry.

MR. SALTON: Again, as Perry noted, |
t hi nk a nunber of the things that we were thinking about
aski ng have been covered by sone of the questions in CHCA
and sone of the answers we’ ve gotten so far.

One area | wanted to explore a little bit
nore is the capital commtnent issues. So the hospitals
i ndi cated that one of the reasons why they pursued a sale

was because their view was that their capital inprovenent
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needs that could not be net needed to be addressed, and

| " mwondering if, agai

n, not asking for accounting |evel

of guarantee, but what woul d you quantify those kind of

capi tal inprovenent needs that need to be addressed on

the two canpuses in the next five years?

MR KARL: Ckay, so, our physical plant

internally -- well, you have to ook at it a few

different ways, so please bear with ne as | go thr

this.

Qur physical plant internally

aesthetically is ugly.

The wal | paper is ripped.

scratches on the walls in the patient roons. The

the patients are in |

12 years ago. The floors are worn.

ough

There's

beds

replaced themwhen | first started

organi zati on | ooks as though that it has not been

mai nt ai ned.

| can tell you that, over the past

Aest hetically, the

five

years, the capital that we have expended has gone into

backup generators, bo

lers, elevators, those behind the

scenes costs that keep the organi zation functioni ng.

What we need to do now is actually prepare

the organi zation for the future. There's a |ot of

hospital -acquired conditions. 1It’s sonething that

we

live with all the tinme that scares the bejesus out of all

POST
HANMDEN,

REPORTI NG SERVI CE
CT (800) 262-4102



© 00 N o o -~ w N Pk

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N PP O O 00 N O O B W N +—» O

171
HEARI NG RE: ECHN AND PIVH
MARCH 29, 2016

of wus.

The last thing you want to do is get a
patient conme into the organization with an i ssue and end
up wth a hospital acquired issue. Wat we’'d like to be
able to do is get our organization into single occupancy
beds. W'd |like to upgrade our ORs. They are way
undersized. They' re only 45 years ol d.

We currently have, you know, as others, as
Dr. Karl had nentioned, we’ve invested in sone pieces of
equi prent that we found were extrenely necessary; robots.

W need to upgrade those robots. W need
to replace our CAT scanners. W need to replace our
MRIs. W need to replace sone of the basic necessities
to take care of patients.

We have several different patient
noni toring systens that we’ ve pieced together over the
years. They work extrenely well. They need to be
repl aced.

W need to invest in sone subspecialists,
whet her they’' re hand surgeons, whether they' re
neurol ogi sts, whether they' re bariatric surgeons.

There’s obviously a significant obesity epidemc and so
on and so forth.

We currently have these plans on the

POST REPORTI NG SERVI CE
HAMDEN, CT (800) 262-4102



© 00 N o o -~ wWw N Pk

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N O O B W N +—» O

172
HEARI NG RE: ECHN AND PIVH
MARCH 29, 2016

docket. We've had these plans for quite sone tine. W
have a 20-year-old EMR They used to call themH S,
Hospital Information System W have an H S that needs
to be upgraded. That’'s about $25 mllion.

There aren’t returns on investnents for a
| ot of these things, but these are the things that we're
going to need to put in place in the future, so we can
appropriately and properly care for the patients that we
currently care for. That’'s just off the top of ny head.

MR. SALTON: So would you kind of ball park
what you think those needs woul d require for capital
i nvest nent s?

MR KARL: What | just threw at you right
now?

MR SALTON: Yeah.

MR KARL: About 40 mllion.

MR SALTON: Ckay and | understand that
Prospect’s commtnent of 75 mllion is to provide
i nprovenent, capital inprovenents to the benefit of the
hospi tal business and for the benefit of the service
areas of the two hospitals, and | understand you don’t
have specifics, as far as allocation, like do we want to
put so much in MR, do we want to put so nuch in building

a new doctor’s office building, or a parking garage for
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our patients, but is there a sense of commtnent that
this $40 mllion out of the 75 mllion will be going to

t he canmpus or sonmewhere in that, sone relative proportion
that’'s close to that?

MR KARL: Yes.

MR SALTON: Now | want to nake sure your
partners agree.

MR KARL: (kay.

MR. SALTON. Because | see a little glint
in the eye.

MR SPEES: Well ny only hesitation is
that we haven't reviewed all of those capital plans with
the | ocal |eadership and the | ocal Board and the
managenent. It certainly sounds |ike the kinds of things
that you woul d expect to find in circunstances |ike this,
and it all sounds |like the kinds of capital investnent
that we would want to make to actually build on the very
significant initial capital investnment that we' re going
to make, so | can’t nmake an unequi vocal commtnent |ike
that, w thout having had the opportunity to reviewthe
detail ed disciplined approach to capital that we'll use.

MR, SALTON: So in doing your due
diligence on the acquisition of these hospitals, you guys

didn't |ook at the capital inprovenent demands that the
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hospital s have before signing to acquire thenf

MR. SPEES: Well we | ooked at, generally,
t he physical condition and the assets, but we haven’'t
prepared a detailed capital expenditure plan. W
certainly reviewed the capital needs |ist and deferred
mai nt enance |ist, which Peter has described, but have not
made a formal commtnent, yes, we're going to do that,
we're going to do that, we're going to do that.

In fact, we wouldn’t. That’'s really part
of our nodel here, is we work with |ocal managenent and
| ocal leadership to identify those projects, so we would
definitely give a ot of credence and weight to Peter’s
view of and | ocal managenent’s view of what the capital
needs are and where they’ re best all ocated.

MR SALTON: You’ ve nade a three-year
comm tnent to keep operating both facilities as acute
care hospitals. Wy only a three-year conmm tnent?

MR KARL: That’'s all we asked for, quite
honest | y.

MR. SPEES: W stepped into the prior
transaction, and that was one of the terns in the prior
transacti on.

MR SALTON: Wul d you be open to a | onger

comm t nent ?
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M5. VOLPE: No. It’'s not negotiated in a
vacuum You know that, Henry. | nean there’s so many
provisions in the asset purchase agreenent that went into
this. | nean, really, when you tal ked about have they
| ooked at the capital needs, they spent a lot of tine
figuring out how nuch it was going to cost to pay all the
pension liabilities.

| mean there was a |ot of due diligence in
recogni zi ng how nuch noney really needed to be spent here
to preserve and maintain these hospitals.

MR ZINN ROMHORN: ['Il ask a different
guestion. Do you foresee circunmstances three years out
under which Prospect m ght nake a determnation that it
no | onger w shes to run an acute care hospital ?

DR. LEW As you sit here today, the
answer i s obviously no. The problemthat we always run
into is you never know what happens froma federa
gover nnent regul ati on perspective or even froma state
regul ati on perspective, in ternms of how health care is
provi ded.

So, in a vacuum if all regulations were
to stay the sane and there were no substantial changes,
then | think the answer is | don't see that, but the

reality of the situation is that we don’t control the
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federal or the state regul ations.

As a responsi bl e business health care
provi der, we have to be able to be adaptive to both of
t hose changes, so your point is that, usually, you don't
see changes occurring in a short tine, but five years
down years the road, six years, seven years down the
road, | don’t know if anybody could sit in our seat and
say that there are no changes that woul d have an inpact.

MR SALTON: So, at this point, you
haven’t done any assessnent or evaluation of a
consol idation of services between the two hospitals to
try to locate one or close one?

| nmean sone people weren't around, but we
used to have a hospital in the north end of Hartford that
was acquired by another hospital, and it got scal ed down
and then di sappeared, so that’s one of the concerns |I'm
trying to antici pate.

MR. CROCKETT: Qur commtnent is to
mai ntain the services for the three-year period. GCetting
back to our original sort of our presentation, as we | ook
to go into val ue-based health care providing, we actually
| ook to expand the service we’re providing underneath the
managenent of the popul ation, and, so, is there services

that are needed that are currently being provided outside

POST REPORTI NG SERVI CE
HAMDEN, CT (800) 262-4102



© 00 N o o b~ w N Pk

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N O O B W N +—» O

177
HEARI NG RE: ECHN AND PIVH
MARCH 29, 2016

of the comunity?

Qur goal would be to actually bring those
services into the community at both of the facilities and
| guess underneath the auspice of being the provider
under neat h heal th popul ati on managenent, so, actually,
for the next few years, that’s actually what our
obj ective is.

MR. ZINN ROMHORN: So the testinony, if
could summarize it, is that, absent substanti al
regul atory at the federal and/or state |evel, you would
not anticipate ceasing to operate in these communities
t hese two acute care hospital s?

MR. CROCKETT: | don't see -- | don't
think there’s anything that we see on the horizon that
woul d change that, so that’s accurate.

MR. REARDON: And take a | ook at our track
record. W' ve never closed a hospital. W are a growth
conpany, not a contraction conpany, but we can’t predict
five, 10 years down the |ine.

MR. SALTON: (Ckay. One of the conditions
to the capital commtnent | understand is that PMH is
reserving the right to defer the comm tnent beyond the
five-year period of the state or federal authorities,

enact requirenents after closing that discrimnate
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agai nst for-profit hospitals and cause the hospital
busi nesses to suffer a decline of EBITDA nore than 10
percent in a year.

| just want to clarify. |It’s both those
conditions. It’s not one or the other, so the fact that
the federal governnment passes sonething that seens to be,
| don’t know how we determ ne that, discrimnates agai nst

the for-profit hospital, but doesn’'t actually inpact to

the extent indicated your -- hit the 10 percent nunber,
that’s not -- that would not, then, be a basis for
deferral ?

MR. SPEES: That's correct.

MR SALTON. Ckay.

MR. ZI NN ROMHORN: Let ne take the
opportunity to editorialize a little bit about that
condition to the capital commtnent.

On this side of the table at |east, our
function is to evaluate the fairness of the transacti on,
and that evaluation includes that $75 mllion conmm tment.

It doesn’t include a $75 nillion
comm tnent that may evaporate, depending on the
regul atory atnosphere and how that changes federally or
on a state |evel.

And, so, this is an issue that we' ve
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confronted in past proposed transactions, and it’s one
that kind of regulatory |egislative change carve out to a
commtnent that forns a substantial part of the val ue of
the transaction is one that we’ve had a dimview of, so
"1l say that coment for your benefit and give you the
opportunity to respond to it.

MR SPEES: | wish | had the | anguage in
front of nme, but I'll speak fromnenory. So it’s
actually a very, very narrow conmtnent that is intended
if there’s sone adverse regul atory devel opnent that is
specific to for-profit hospitals only, soit’'s really
meant to be sonmething very narrow and extrenely unlikely.

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: Ckay. One shoul d not
be surprised to see a condition that relates to that
purported carve out if this transaction were to be
appr oved.

MR. SALTON: Okay. |I'mleaving capita
commtnent, and | only have one other question, which is,
if youre a local physician, primary care physician or
otherw se, they're participating the CRC and they' re
sayi ng, okay, what are the obligations or requirenents
for this local physician to participate in the CRC?

Do they have to be a nenber of the |IPA?

Do they have to be enployed by the Medical -- part of the
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Medi cal Foundati on?

DR. LEW They can be enpl oyed or they can
remai n i ndependent. That's one of the values of the
nmodel, is it can engage physicians, dependi ng on where
they are in their career and what their desires are for
enpl oynent or not.

Contractually, they need to be part of the
network and referred to physicians wthin the network.
W’'re going to hold themto quality standards that are
witten out in the contract and tell themwhat quality
metrics they’'re going to get bonused on and what’s goi ng
to be asked of them and there are a |ot of other
requirenments related to subm ssion of encounter data or
usage of EMR and using best practices, as it relates to
t aki ng actual |y managenent of a patient.

So, you know, basically, they ve got to
stay wthin the network, refer patients that are part of
our network, keep themin the network, and we hold them
to the quality standards, but they don’'t have to be
enpl oyed.

So you coul d have a doctor, who is part of
the IPA, that mght go to another hospital. They may
actually be enpl oyed by soneone, a system down the

street. That’'s what's nice about our npdel and our
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system It’'s open, and, so, we are not a closed system
inall of our markets. W have relationships with our
conmpetitors, okay?

We can use our nodel as a way to reach out
and really start to manage popul ati on toget her

MR SALTON. kay, so, just, again, froma
| ayperson’s perspective, so sonmeone brings their spouse
to the energency roomone day at Manchester Menoria
Hospital, their famly physician is an old-tinmer, who is
not participating in the IPA and they' re admtted,
because they have a condition, which requires sone |ong-
term chronic maybe foll owup, that the CRC would be a
perfect kind of thing for popul ati on managenent, so if
this patient wants or the hospital says we want you to
participate in this popul ati on managenent process we
have, do they have to then | eave their physician?

Do they have to get their physician to
sign up, or do they have to go to soneone el se? Wen you
tal k about managi ng a popul ati on, where you have sone
providers in the community, who may or may not be in your
| PA, I’ mwondering how that works.

DR. LEW Yeah, so, Henry, what we woul d
do is offer to have that patient brought into our

prograns and to be part of the care managenent program
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We call it Care Plus, and, so, even though they’'re not
part of the I PA they can still access the services,
because it’s better for the patient, and you don't want
that patient to have to be readmtted.

What happens, so, we’'re doing this in
ot her markets through an ACO and feeding patients into
our nodel, is they like it, and they want access and to
be part of a program and, so, when it cones tinme to open
enrol I nent to convert and be part of the network by
signing up for a plan, that’'s what ends up happeni ng.

So, to answer your question, no, they
don’t have to be part of a network to access the
services, because, again, we still need to take good care
of the patient and nmake sure they don't get readmtted.

MR SALTON. kay. Gary, do you want to
ask sone guestions?

MR GARY HAWES: (ood evening. M nane is
Gary Hawes. | work at the Attorney General’'s Ofice,
and, as noted at the beginning of this hearing, one of
our primary responsibilities is the protection of the
charitable funds, as those are seen the hospital, itself,
being a charitable organi zation, the investnent that the
community has in the hospital, and, specifically, the

actual charitable funds that the hospitals hold. Lots of
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peopl e give funds to the hospitals.

| really only have one question and a
coupl e of requests for sone late-filed exhibits, but,
before | get there, | want to point out that the reason
that | have so little is because the production that I
got was wonderful .

| have found ECHN, and | haven’'t had to
ask much at PVH, because |I'mnore with the ECHN
charitabl e assets, but it’s been a great production, so
t hank you very much

And there was actually a production
yesterday norning, and that’s where sone of ny requests
and questions cone from and these relate to the funds.
There are about |’'d say approxi mately about 100 funds
t hat ECHN hol ds, either Manchester, Rockville, or the
foundation, itself.

One question | have concerns the fund. W
understanding is it’s still in the mdst of probate, and
some distributions have been made. This is the Raynond
F. Damato Fund or Estate, excuse ne, and the fund nunber
is, as it was submtted in Certificate of Need
Application, 11.1-30, and the recently submtted filing
tal ks about the ideas and the plan that ECHN has for the

di stributions that may cone. Although the interest is
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vested and sone of the distributions have been nade, not
all of them have been made, and, so, the ECHN has a pl an
and has discussed with the executor what m ght happen
with that.

My question is to what extent has ECHN
commtted to this proposal? In discussion at Board
nmeeti ngs, has there been a Board vote about what ECHN
woul d i ke to happen with the Damato distributions?

DR. O NEILL: W’re going to ask our |ega
counsel to answer that, and then I'Il give you a little
si de comment .

MR, HAWES: Thank you.

M5. JOYCE TICHY: So far -- can you hear
me? My nane is Joyce Tichy. So, so far, what we have
done with our Board is that we -- the Board has been very
interested in and hopeful to ensure that the funds nmade
avai | abl e through this request fully honor the nenory of
M . Danat o.

He was a very wel | - known, deeply-I|oved
person in the community, and just to give a little bit of
background, he owned a nunber of properties in the
Manchest er area.

| f you drive around Manchester and you

happen to see apartnent buildings with a covered wagon in
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front of them that was his signature. They are really
all over, and, when you drive by, you know that that was
his trademark.

He was not only a good and very | oyal
person in the community. He was also a very successfu
busi nessman, and, so, when he left funds to ECHN and
others, he really just spread the benefit of all he had
done throughout his life.

So, in that regard, knowi ng the history of
M. Damato, the interest of the Board was to nmake sure
that the intentions that he expressed through this
bequest were honored, and we understood that his primary
interest was not only to enhance the health of the
comunity, but, through his other bequests, we knew he
was very interested in education.

Actual Iy, another part of his bequest went
to Manchester Community Col | ege. Another went to anot her
institution, not-for-profit institution of education in
Connecticut, | nean in Manchester, East Catholic H gh
School

So, in thinking about this and know ng, as
t he Board does, sonme of the things that were expressed to
you earlier, that it’s very inportant to maintain

physicians in the community, to enhance our GVE program
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so that physicians want to stay in Manchester and serve
Manchester, the thought of the Board was to arrange for
the transfer of the funds to the entity, the University
of New Engl and Col | ege of Medicine, that currently
managers are graduate nedical education program wth the
restriction that the nonies generated would and could
only be spent in Manchester to further graduate nedica
education, with the further condition that, insofar as
t he noni es woul d be needed to pay off ECHN s debts as
part of the transaction, which, of course, is forenost
for us, it would first be used toward that purpose.

So our Board is very interested in this
concept. It neets a lot of where we think it’s best for
the noney to go, and it also is, by its nature, it would
be significant enough to matter to show that there was
i nportance to the grant that he gave.

One of the options would be actually to
finance a portion of the building where graduate nedical
education could be done and, insofar as possible, provide
a nam ng opportunity to the building, so that his nane
woul d remain there for everyone to see

So that’s where it is. Were our Board
has gone at this point is we have -- they have authorized

us to pursue this with Unicom and we have foll owed t hat
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instruction by continuing conversations wth Uni com

W al so, because we know that matters of
this nature are of interest to the community and that the
function of you all is to ensure that those interests are
honored, we are actually waiting to see if you have any
comment on it.

Were you to be agreeable to that, and |
know that M. Hawes may have sone thoughts about the
structuring of it, we, then, would proceed with this
process and continue to converse wth Unicomand put
together a resolution to the effect that we have
described, but, at this point, there is no final Board
resol ution that sends the noney over.

Anot her thing, just to add to this, is the
executor of the estate we’ve nmet with hima coupl e of
times, and he is very interested, also, in making sure
that this noney is used in the way that would be
appropriate to M. Damato’s noney, and he has expressed a
strong positive viewtoward this for all the reasons that
| "ve just descri bed.

So that’s where we’'re at, and, certainly,
if we could, if you have any thoughts about how to
construct this appropriately, we are happy to hear those.

We just want to do this right.
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DR. O NEILL: So just to add one nore
t hought, what the Board did was we passed a resolution to
pursue this idea wth the executor and with the Attorney
Ceneral. W didn’t commt to any program

M5. TICHY: W actually are hopeful that
we could neet with one or nore nenbers of your office to
describe the various kinds of facilities or possibilities
that this noney could be used for, one of which could be
part of the building.

Anot her woul d be possibly this would be
second, sort of have a list of things, but sort of |ower
on the list, but possibly appropriate, as well, would be
to finance the actual nedical education of the students
t hat cone through Manchester

Getting a nedical education is
phenonenal | y expensive. It’s an extrene weight on the
shoul ders of physicians, who then basically spend the
first portion of their career just paying back the noney,
so if we could finance education in that way, with a hope
that the person receiving the noney would stay in
Manchester, that is also a possibility.

Utimately, the goal would be to nmake sure
that the restriction is for nedical education and in a

heal th-rel ated capacity, because that’s what clearly his
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bequest was intending. D d | forget anything?

MR HAWES: Thank you. In yesterday’s
production, too, there were two outstanding issues with
respect to funds, and, so, ny request is going to be just
for | guess a late-filed exhibit that addresses these two
issues, and, if there’s a problemwth that, also, I
woul d i ke to hear about that.

The E. Stevens Henry fund, it’s Fund 11.1-
55, this is one that ny understanding is there’s sone
difficulty trying to understand exactly how it should be
classified, so for those of you, who are wondering about
the classification systens we have, sonme are restricted
funds, as to spending and to use, and we try to
under stand exactly how all that plays out, and then how
those funds are going to ultimately be transferred to the
new foundation, which is part of, also, of our
jurisdiction.

So this one is, | guess, a difficult,
well, I knowit’'s a difficult nut to crack, so it
i ndi cated that the hospital was currently eval uating
this, and, so, a resolution of that, should you be able
to get there, would be great as a late-filed exhibit, so
| think that woul d be --

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: That woul d be
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Late File No. 7.

MR HAWES: Late File 7. And | think we
can just do it in the sane exhibit, if that exhibit can
be a subm ssion to our office.

You had indicated here that you' re
updating the values of the funds. |I'’mtrying to renmenber
what they were current as of. It was Septenber 30, 2015,
so | don’t know the date that you could do that, if it
can be March 31, 2016. [I'mnot sure if you can get us
nunbers for that, but that would be our nost current fund
val uation that we would definitely like to use.

As | indicated, too, one of the other
areas that we have jurisdiction over and our job starts
kind of after the transaction and creating a new
foundation, and ECHN has presented to us a good draft
Certificate of Incorporation and Byl aws for this new
foundation, but one of the things, in addition to all
t hese specific funds that will nost Iikely be transferred
there, is whatever charitable assets the fair market
value that’s remaining the assets of ECHN that’s
transferred over.

My revi ew shows that the nost recent
analysis of that is alittle outdated, so | just want to

ask for an update on this. It's a table, actually. It’s
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a sinple table, sonmething that | can actually follow and
it was submtted to us in the response to the first and
second letters of deficiency that were sent out by our
offices. It was Table No. 8, and it was on page 2210,
and it’s the Net Proceeds Analysis.

My understanding is we don't need to go to
the $115 mllion option, that we can just go with the
$105 mllion option, but if that can be updated to, you
know, whatever current nunbers that exist and be filed,
again, it can be filed along with the sane docunent, | ust
to provide us the nost current information on that, that
woul d be great, and | understand it’'s as current as you
can be, with lots of things shifting.

That’s all | have. Thank you.

MR ZINN ROMHORN: So | think that waps
up our collective questions. W took public comment out
of order fromour agenda, so, at this point, we'll ask if
t here’ s anyone, who has cone in since the public coment
section, or was here, but thought of sonething they' d
like to say, and open that up to the floor. Anybody?

M5. VOLPE: If at all possible, we'd |ike
an opportunity to make sure we address your concerns
t horoughly on the capital conmtnent.

W understand that’'s an i ssue and a
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concern, and, you know, we’ve had an opportunity to | ook
at the provision. Again, this is a |leftover provision
from anot her transaction, and, you know, we nade
commtnents and to step into it, but if you could indul ge
us just for a fewmnutes to tal k anong oursel ves and get
back to you?

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: W' d be happy to do
that. W’'re going to be together again tonorrow, so we
coul d push that over until tonorrow.

M5. VOLPE: Sure.

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: But | appreciate that,
M chele. On behalf of the Attorney General’s Ofice and
the Attorney General, | want to thank all of you for your
i nput .

This has been a long, but | think very
productive, fromour perspective, helpful and informative
afternoon. W appreciate your patience with our process.

To the nenbers of the public, who are
still here or who were here, we thank you for your input.
W were very happy to see such a big crowd, so thank you
all.

For those, who have an appetite for it,
we're going to do it again tonmorrow in Vernon. All are

wel cone. Sone are required. (Laughter) But thank you,

POST REPORTI NG SERVI CE
HAMDEN, CT (800) 262-4102



© 00 N o o -~ w N Pk

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N O O B W N +—» O

193

HEARI NG RE: ECHN AND PIVH
MARCH 29, 2016

and have a good eveni ng.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Just one point
of housekeepi ng before we | eave. The late files, those
will be due April 8th. Does that give enough tinme for
everyt hi ng?

M5. VOLPE: Wiat is the plan, in terns of
keeping this open? | nean do you plan on keeping this
open beyond April 8th?

MR ZINN ROMHORN: Well | can tell you
with respect to at | east the issue of the i mediate
jeopardies, we would Iike to keep that open up through
our decision date to receive docunents that go back and
forth between the parties and CV5, so, at |least to that
respect, | think we’'d like to be as up-to-date as
possi ble, and then | don’t know if others have thoughts
about keeping the record open.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: |’ m not opposed
toit. | just want to set a finite date.

M5. VOLPE: Sure. Could we, depending on
what late files we hear for tonorrow, could we agree on a
dat e tonorrow?

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: That’s fi ne.

M5. VOLPE: So we know the totality of

what we’re producing, and we’'ll be in a better position?
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HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Yes. Yes. So

set a date at tonorrow s hearing.

Thank you.

HEAR NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Ckay, thank you,

we' ||

M5, VOLPE:
everyone.

(Wher eupon,
p.m)

t he hearing adjourned at 7:38
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